
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO 

CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING 

A G E N D A  

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Moberly 

City Council Room – Moberly City Hall 

101 West Reed Street 

March 20, 2023 

6:00 PM 
  
Posted:  

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes 
1. Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For March 6, 2023. 

Recognition of Visitors 

Communications, Requests, Informational Items   
2. Communication From The Downtown Community Improvement District Of The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 

Proposed Budget.  

3. Communication From The Moberly Crossing Community Improvement District Of The Fiscal Year 2022-

2023 Proposed Budget.  

Ordinances & Resolutions 
4. An Ordinance Amending Section 46-82 Of The Moberly City Code Relating To Manufactured Home Parks 

Residential Districts. 

5. A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Frank And Sherry Cross For Property Located At The 

Omar N. Bradley Airport And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

6. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Preventative Maintenance Pump/Control Panel 

Scheduled Maintenance Contract With Vandevanter Engineering/Cogent Company. 

7. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into Amendment Number 1 To Task Order Number 

19 With Bartlett & West, Inc. Supplementing A Master Agreement Dated March 3, 2020, To Provide 

Engineering Services For The Kiwanis Park Shelter House And Restroom Building. 

8. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase An International Dump Truck For Public Utilities. 

9. A Resolution Accepting A Permanent Sewer Line Easement From Superior Watercraft Inc. 

10. A Resolution Accepting A Fluoridation Grant From The Missouri Department Of Health And Senior 

Services. 

11. A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Lute Custom Fencing, LLC., And Authorizing Contracting For CSO 

Basin Replacement Fence Systems. 

12. A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri. 

Official Reports 
13. Department Head Monthly Reports. 

Anything Else to Come Before the Council 
14. Consideration For Approval Of A New Liquor Application. 

15. Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The 

Status of Litigation and Negotiated Contract.  (Closed Statute 610.021) (1,12) 

Adjournment 
 

We invite you to attend virtually by viewing it live on the City of Moberly Facebook page.  A link to the City’s Channel can be 

found on our website’s main page at www.cityofmoberly.com. The public is invited to attend the Council meeting.  Representatives 

of the news media may obtain copies of this notice by contacting the City Clerk.  If a special accommodation is needed as addressed 

by the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact the City Clerk twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting. 

1

http://www.cityofmoberly.com/


 

March 6, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 3 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
March 6, 2023 

 
Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers with Mayor Jeffrey presiding. 
 
All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Jeffrey. 
 
Council Members answering the roll call were: Jerry Jeffrey, Tim Brubaker, John Kimmons (via Zoom), Austin Kyser, 
and Brandon Lucas. 
 
A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to approve the minutes of the February 21, 2023, Council 
meeting as presented.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
A motion was made by Lucas and seconded by Kyser to approve the agenda.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, 
Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Mayor Jeffrey designated March 12-18, 2023, as AmeriCorps Week in Moberly, and presented a Proclamation for 
AmeriCorp Seniors to Harold Smith. 
 
A request was received for a street light in the 600 block of Fort Street.  A motion was made by Kyser and seconded 
by Lucas to approve the request.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Kyser introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR 
SPECIAL EVENTS WITH MOBERLY COMMUNITY BETTERMENT AND THE DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT” and moved that the bill be read two times by title for passage.  Brubaker seconded the 
motion, and upon said motion the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: 
none.  The bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by title two times.  Kyser moved 
that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  Lucas seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote 
on the motion, the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Brubaker introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A FIRST ADDENEUM TO A 
CERTAIN INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT FOR OPERATION OF A FARMER’S MARKET WITH THE 
RANDOLPH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AND THE DOWNTOWN MOBERLY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT 

2

#1.



 

March 6, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 2 of 3 

DISTRICT” and moved that the bill be read two times by title for passage.  Kyser seconded the motion, and upon said 
motion the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The bill having 
previously been made available for public inspection was read by title two times.  Brubaker moved that the bill be 
enacted into an ordinance.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote on the 
motion, the vote was as follows:  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Lucas introduced “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
APPLICATION FOR USE OF RESCUE FUNDS FROM RANDOLPH COUNTY, MISSOURI” and made a motion for it to be 
read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The 
Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was 
made by Brubaker and seconded by Lucas to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and 
Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN THE MISSOURI HIGHWAY SAFETY PROGRAM 
AND A GRANT APPLICATION FOR DWI ENFORCEMENT” and made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded 
the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously 
been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded 
by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Brubaker introduced “AN RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE MISSOURI FIREFIGHTERS CRITICAL ILLNESS TRUST AND POOL, AND FURTHER AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE SUCH DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE NECESSARY FOR THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION THEREIN” 
and made a motion for it to be read.  Lucas seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and 
Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by title 
one time.  A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Brubaker to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, 
Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Lucas introduced “A RESOLUTION RECORDING THE DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN LOCAL GOVERNMENT RECORDS” 
and made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and 
Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by title 
one time.  A motion was made by Brubaker and seconded by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, 
Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT 
OF AGRICULTURE FORM CCC-866 FOR THE PROGRAM YEAR 2023” and made a motion for it to be read.  Brubaker 
seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  The Resolution bill having previously 
been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Lucas and seconded 
by Brubaker to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Brubaker introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, 
MISSOURI IN THE AMOUNT OF $451,526.50” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  
Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made 
available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Lucas and seconded by Kimmons 
to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 
 
Lucas made a motion to move the July 3, 2023, meeting to June 29, 2023.  Kyser seconded the motion.  Ayes: Jeffrey, 
Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

3

#1.



 

March 6, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 3 of 3 

 
Wynona Whitaker with the Moberly Monitor Index was present. 
 
A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Lucas to adjourn to a work session followed by a closed session to 
discuss the status of a negotiated contract.  (Closed Statute 610.021)(12).  Ayes: Jeffrey, Brubaker, Kimmons, Kyser 
and Lucas.  Nays: none. 

 
Work Session 

 
The following was discussed at the work session: 
 
A Request For A Street Light In The 1000 Block Of Myra St.  Staff recommended that this not move forward due to 
vegetation in the area and it would cost several thousands of dollars to provide secondary power to that area and 
the City does not have an available budget for that at this time.  This item will not move forward. 
 
A Text Amendment Application Submitted By The City Of Moberly In Article II, Section 46-82 On Manufactured Home 
Park Residential District.  
 
Review Of Land Agreement With Frank Cross For Private Hangar At 1221 Aviator Lane.  
 
Discussion Regarding A Proposal From Vandevanter For A 5 Year Pumping System Maintenance Service Contract And 
Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Agreement On Behalf Of The City.  
 
A Discussion Regarding The Purchase Of A Dump Truck For Public Utilities From Rush Truck Center of Missouri And 
Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Agreement On Behalf Of The City. 

4

#1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Communication from the Downtown Community Improvement District of the 

Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget.  

  

Summary: The Downtown CID’s budget must be sent to the municipality in accordance 

with section 67.1471.2 RSMo. This budget is for information only and will be 

adopted prior to June 30th, 2023. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Information only  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report   x    Other         Passed Failed 

 

5

#2.



CUNNINGHAM, VOGEL & ROST, P.C. 
legal counselors to local government 

 
LYNDEE J. RODAMAKER 3660 S GEYER ROAD, SUITE 340 

lyndee@municipalfirm.com ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63127 

 TEL:  314.446.0800 

 FAX:  314.446.0801 

  www.municipalfirm.com 

 
March 20, 2023 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Attn: Brian Crane 

101 W. Reed Street 

Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 Re: Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District Annual Budget for 2023-2024 

 

Dear Mr. Crane: 

 

In accordance with Section 67.1471.2 RSMo., please find attached the proposed annual budget, 

beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024, for the Downtown Moberly Community 

Improvement District (the “District”) for the City Council’s review and comment. Pursuant to the 

statute, the City may review and submit comments on the proposed budget to the District’s Board of 

Directors. Please include this as a discussion item for the March 16, 2023 City Council meeting. 

Additionally, please submit comments in writing to: 

 

 Downtown Moberly Community Improvement District 

 Mr. Brian Crane 

 101 W. Reed St. 

 Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 Lyndee Rodamaker  

 Cunningham, Vogel & Rost 

 3660 S. Geyer Rd.,  

 Suite 340 

 St. Louis, MO 63127 

 

Please have the City Council submit any comments directed to the Board of Directors by May 

2, 2023. 

 

Thank you. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Lyndee J. Rodamaker 

Special Counsel to the Downtown Moberly 

Community Improvement District 

Enclosures 

6

#2.



7

#2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Communication from the Moberly Crossing Community Improvement District 

of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget.  

  

Summary: The attached Moberly Crossing Improvement District proposed budget is for 

the City Council to review    

  

Recommended 

Action: Information only  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
        Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report   x    Other         Passed Failed 

 

8

#3.



CUNNINGHAM, VOGEL & ROST, P.C. 
legal counselors to local government 

 
LYNDEE J. RODAMAKER 3660 S GEYER ROAD, SUITE 340 

lyndee@municipalfirm.com ST. LOUIS, MISSOURI 63127 

 TEL:  314.446.0800 

 FAX:  314.446.0801 

  www.municipalfirm.com 

 
March 20, 2023 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Attn: Brian Crane 

101 W. Reed Street 

Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 Re: Moberly Crossings Community Improvement District Annual Budget for 2023-2024 

 

Dear Mr. Crane: 

 

In accordance with Section 67.1471.2 RSMo., please find attached the proposed annual budget, 

beginning July 1, 2023, and ending June 30, 2024, for the Moberly Crossings Community 

Improvement District (the “District”) for the City Council’s review and comment. Pursuant to the 

statute, the City may review and submit comments on the proposed budget to the District’s Board of 

Directors. Please include this as a discussion item for the March 16, 2023 City Council meeting. 

Additionally, please submit comments in writing to: 

 

 Moberly Crossings Community Improvement District 

 Mr. Greg Hodge 

 101 W. Reed St. 

 Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 

 Lyndee Rodamaker  

 Cunningham, Vogel & Rost 

 3660 S. Geyer Rd.,  

 Suite 340 

 St. Louis, MO 63127 

 

Please submit any comments directed to the Board of Directors by May 2, 2023. 

 

Thank you. 

 

Sincerely, 

Lyndee J. Rodamaker 

Special Counsel to the Moberly Crossings  

Community Improvement District 

 

Enclosures 

9

#3.



 

MOBERLY CROSSINGS 

COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

BUDGET MESSAGE FOR 

FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 PROPOSED BUDGET 
 

 The Board of Directors of the Moberly Crossings Community Improvement District (the 

“District”) has the following budget message for the fiscal year 2023-2024: 

 

1. The District has imposed a CID sales tax at a rate of 1% (the “CID Sales Tax”), in 

accordance with Section 67.1545 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended. 

 

2. The Board of Directors of the District hereby adopts the District’s annual budget for the 

fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024, a copy of which is 

attached. 

 

3. The amounts set forth on the Budget are hereby appropriated for the fiscal year beginning 

on July 1, 2023, and ending on June 30, 2024. 

 

4. The expenditures appropriated do not exceed the amount of revenues anticipated plus 

initial fund balances.  

 

5. The Board of Directors of the District hereby adopts the attached Revised 2023-2024 

Budget for the fiscal year beginning on July 1, 2023, and ending on June 30, 2024. 

10

#3.



 

  

 
MOBERLY CROSSINGS COMMUNITY 

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

2023-2024 PROPOSED ANNUAL BUDGET 

 
Income, Revenues: 

 FY 2021-22 

Actual 

FY 2022-23 

Original 

Budget 

FY 2022-23 

Estimated 

FY 2022-23 

Revised 

Budget 

FY 2023-24 

Budget 

1% CID Sales/Use 

Tax Receipts 

34,907.59 31,000.00 33,000.00 33,000.00 40,000.00 

Interest Earnings 6.97 10.00 35.00 35.00 175.00 

Total Revenue 34,914.56 31,010.00 33,035.00 33,035.00 40,175.00 

 

Expenditures: 

 FY 2021-22 

Actual 

FY 2022-23 

Original 

Budget 

FY 2022-23 

Estimated 

FY 2022-23 

Revised 

Budget 

FY 2023-24 

Budget 

Administrative Expenses 

Legal and 

Accounting Fees 

3,565.00 3,000.00 3,600.00 3,600.00 3,000.00 

Insurance 

Premium 

1,520.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 

Total Admin. 

Expenses 

5,085.00 4,500.00 5,100.00 5,100.00 4,500.00 

 

Principal and 

Interest Payment 

27,980.04 28,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 33,000.00 

Total All 

Expenditures 

33,065.04 32,500.00 37,100.00 37,100.00 37,500.00 

 

  

Other Financing Sources: 

 FY 2021-22 

Actual 

FY 2022-23 

Original 

Budget 

FY 2022-23 

Estimated 

FY 2022-23 

Revised 

Budget 

FY 2023-24 

Budget 

Fund Balance at 

Beginning of 

Fiscal Year – All 

Funds 

28,163.97 28,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 

 

Ending Fund Balance: 

 FY 2021-22 

Actual 

FY 2022-23 

Original 

Budget 

FY 2022-23 

Estimated 

FY 2022-23 

Revised 

Budget 

FY 2023-24 

Budget 

 32,650.54 28,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 32,000.00 

 

 

11

#3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Amending Section 46-82 Of The Moberly City Code Relating 

To Manufactured Home Parks Residential Districts. 

  

Summary: With the recent change of ownership on several Mobile Home Parks, it has sparked 

conversation about the types of structures that would be available to fill empty 

lots in these parks.  Specifically, the ability to construct “Tiny Homes” and be 

able to locate those within the city limits.  Due to their size, portability, and 

unique design, they often resemble manufactured homes with a more 

conventional build upon a foundation or chassis.  The City of Moberly has 

guidelines adopted in the IRC to cover these as they have gained popularity 

over the years and also may be a viable option for expanding the housing 

market in Moberly. 

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval for the request of 

this text amendment. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinace. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

12

#4.



 

 

 BILL NO: __________________ 
   

 

ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 46-82 OF THE MOBERLY CITY CODE 

RELATING TO MANUFACTURED HOME PARKS RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS. 

 
WHEREAS, Section 46-82 of the Moberly City Code provides for manufactured home 

parks within the City of Moberly; and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff proposed to the Planning and Zoning Commission (the 
“Commission”) that “Tiny Homes” be permitted within Manufactured Home Park Residential 
Districts; and 
  

WHEREAS,, the Commission recommended approval of the use of Tiny Homes using 
guidelines created within the International Residential Code Appendix AQ. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 
 

 SECTION ONE:  Chapter 46, Article II, Section 46-82 (f) is hereby amended to include 
subsection (11) to read as follows: 
 
Sec.  46-82.- MP Manufactured Home Park Residential District. 

  (f) General regulations.   
  (11)  Alternative Building Design.  Manufactured Home Parks shall be permitted to include  
  “Tiny Homes” as defined in the International Residential Code Appendix AQ guidelines.   
  Tiny Homes shall range in size from 200 to 650 square feet.  Tiny Homes shall meet all  
  Requirements of the Manufactured Home Parks Residential District and the International 
  Residential Code.  

 
 SECTION TWO: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon passage by the    
City Council.  

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 20th 

day of March, 2023. 

        

____________________________ 
Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  
 

 

___________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 13

#4.



14

#4.



15

#4.



16

#4.



17

#4.



18

#4.



19

#4.



20

#4.



21

#4.



22

#4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Works 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Frank And Sherry Cross 

For Property Located At The Omar N. Bradley Airport And Authorizing The 

City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

  

Summary: Frank Cross purchase the private hangar from Richard Castle that is located at the 

Omar N. Bradley Airport at 1221 Aviator Ln.  Attached is the bill of sale and the new 

land lease for Frank Cross 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

23

#5.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO._________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH FRANK AND SHERRY 

CROSS FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE OMAR N. BRADLEY AIRPORT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE LEASE. 

 

WHEREAS, Frank and Sherry Cross approached City staff desiring to enter into a 

fifteen year ground lease at Omar N. Bradley Regional Airport for an existing hangar facility; 

and 

WHEREAS,  attached hereto is a proposed ground lease the terms of which have been 

agreed to by the Crosses and City staff; and  

WHEREAS, the lease agreement attached hereto provides for an annual lease term 

beginning upon acceptance by the City Council and sets forth the rights and liabilities of the 

parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the lease agreement with Frank and Sherry Cross is hereby 

approved and the City Manager or his designee is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement 

on behalf of the City of Moberly, Missouri. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 
 

 

 

24

#5.



 

 

 

LEASE 

 

 
 THIS LEASE made this the _________ day of ________________, 20 _____ by and between the 

City of Moberly, Missouri, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called the “Lessor” and       

    Frank and Sherry Cross    hereinafter called “Lessee”. 

 WITNESSETH:   

 The Lessor leases to the Lessee premises located in the County of Randolph and State of Missouri, as 

follows:   

The South half of the Airport hangar lying in the below described tract. 

 

Commencing at a cotton gin spike marking the Northeast corner of the Northwest Quarter of the 

Southeast Quarter of Section 24, Township 54 North, Range 14 West, Randolph County Missouri; 

thence along the Quarter Section line North 88 degrees 26 minutes 52 seconds West a distance of 

501.94 feet; thence leaving said Quarter Section line North 01 degrees 43 minutes 01 seconds East a 

distance of 504.08 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence North 88 degrees 16 minutes 59 seconds 

West a distance of 100.00 feet; thence North 01 degrees 43 minutes 01 seconds East a distance of 

140.00 feet; thence South 88 degrees 16 minutes 59 seconds East a distance of 100.00 feet; thence 

South 01 degrees 43 minutes 01 seconds West a distance of 140.00 feet to the Point of Beginning, said 

tract containing 0.32 acres more or less or more commonly known as 1221 Aviator Lane, Moberly, 

MO. 

 

1. To have and to hold the premises, containing    1,536   sq. ft. of structure for a term of fifteen 

(15) years from and after the __________ day of _____________________, 20 ______. 

2. It is further understood and agreed by and between the parties that in addition to the payment by 

the Lessee of the cost of the construction of the airport hangar building located on the above-described 

premises, Lessee will pay as a rental fee per square foot of structure upon the above described lands to the 

City during the term hereof, at the rate of $.15 sq. ft.  per year, payable annually in advance, the first of said 

payments being due upon the execution of this lease, and the remaining payments being due on the third day 

of January thereafter during the primary terms hereof.  It is understood and agreed by and between the parties 

that time is of the essence of this contract and Lessee does hereby bind him/her to pay promptly said rental 

payments for the full term hereof.  Failure to make timely rental payments will be grounds for default. Also, if 

Lessee shall violate any of the restrictions in this lease or shall fail to keep any of its covenants after written 
25

#5.



notice to cease such violation and shall fail to correct such violation within thirty days, the Lessor may at 

once, if it so elects, terminate the same and take possession of the premises.  It is further understood and 

agreed that there shall be a mandatory site lease rent cost review by the airport advisory committee every fifth 

year, for the duration of the lease, for possible rent adjustment, based on inflation factors, not to exceed CPI, 

and airport improvements. 

3. The Lessee shall have the right to erect, maintain and alter buildings or structure upon said 

premises providing such buildings or structures conform to the Building Code requirements of the City of 

Moberly, now or hereafter in effect. All plans for such buildings or structures shall be reviewed and approved 

by the said Airport Committee. Title to the building(s) erected by the Lessee shall remain with the Lessee and 

shall be transferable during the term of the lease (see item #9). 

4. The building upon the premises shall be maintained in all respects by the Lessee during the term 

of this lease.  The Lessee shall not make any substantial alteration in the external elevation or architectural 

design of the building after the same is constructed or injure or remove any of the principal walls or 

supporting timbers thereof without the consent in writing of the Lessor.  The building upon the premises 

herein leased shall be used solely for the purpose of storage, repair and maintenance of aircraft and other 

purposes incidental to general aviation.  The Lessor shall have the privilege of terminating this lease upon 

sixty (60) days notice to Lessee that such lease will be terminated unless necessary repairs are made. 

5. In the event of fire or any other casualty, the owner of such structure so affected shall either 

repair or replace the building to its original condition or return site to original condition.  Such action must be 

accomplished within 90 days of the date the damage occurred. Upon petition by the Lessee, the Lessor may 

grant an extension of time if it appears such extension is warranted. 

6. It is understood that the Lessor will maintain the apron and provide snow removal for the apron 

and ramps providing access to the leased premises. 

7. Lessor agrees that following termination of this lease that Lessee shall have the right of first 

refusal to rent or lease the subject realty at the then prevailing rate and upon the then currently acceptable 

conditions.  At the termination of this lease, whether the same be at the end of the lease or prior termination 

for cause, the Lessee shall surrender the premises, with all buildings erected thereon and additions thereto to 26

#5.



the Lessor.  Any building erected upon the premises herein leased or any fixture of a permanent nature placed 

upon said premises, including driveway, runways, or aprons, shall at the termination of this lease become the 

property of the Lessor without payment of any nature whatsoever to the Lessee, provided the Lessee does not 

wish to sell the facility or renew the lease. 

8. The Lessee shall not suffer the premises or any improvements thereon to become subject to any 

lien, charge or any encumbrance whatsoever; it is being expressly agreed that the Lessee shall have no 

authority express or implied to create any lien, charge, or encumbrance upon the premises or the 

improvements thereon. 

9. The Lessee shall not assign this lease, except with the Lessor’s written consent. 

10. Lessee agrees during the term of this lease not to interfere with the normal operations of the 

airport.  

11. Lessee agrees that said hanger will be used only for the storage maintenance and operation of 

the Lessee’s private aircraft and no services are provided to the general public, unless a business license is 

acquired and all other requirements of a commercial property are met, and the business is wholly aviation 

related.  Final determination for “Aviation Related” will be made by the Airport Board. 

12. It is agreed that the Lessor and its agents and servants at all reasonable times shall have the right 

to enter upon the premises leased to view the condition of the premises and the building. 

13. Lessee hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its City Council, boards 

and commissioners, officers, agents, employees, volunteers and contractors from any and all loss, damage, 

cost, expense, liability, claims, demands, suits, attorneys’ fees and judgments arising directly or indirectly 

from or in any manner related to Lessee’s possession, occupancy or use of the Premises, regardless of any 

active or passive negligence by the City, except as may otherwise stated herein. 

14. Insurance.  Prior to commencement of the term of this Agreement, Lessee shall procure and 

maintain at Lessee’s own cost and expense, for the duration of this Agreement, the following insurance 

against claims for injuries or death to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in connection 

with the possession, occupancy, operations and use of the Premises by the Lessee, its agents, representatives, 

contractors, guests, and invitees. 27

#5.



(a)  Minimum Limits/Scope of Insurance.  Lessee shall obtain and maintain Aircraft or General 

Liability Insurance against liability for financial loss resulting from bodily injury, including death or personal 

injury, and damage to property caused by the ownership, operation, storage, and use of aircraft arising from 

or related to this lease Agreement. The policy shall provide limits of no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 

and include coverage for fire damage legal liability at the full $1,000,000 policy limit. 

(b)  Endorsements.  The Aircraft and General Liability Insurance policies shall contain the following 

provisions:  

               1.  City of Moberly, Missouri, its City Council, its officers, officials, employees, and 

volunteers are to be covered as additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of the use of the 

premises leased to Lessee. 

               2.  For any claims related to this Agreement, Lessee’s insurance coverage shall be primary as 

respects City of Moberly, Missouri its officers, officials, employees, elected officials and volunteers.  Any 

insurance maintained by the City of Moberly, Missouri shall be excess of Lessee’s insurance and shall not 

contribute to it. 

15. Defaults.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material 

default and breach of this lease Agreement by Lessee: 

               (a)          The failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent; or any other payment required 

to be made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where such failure shall continue for a period of ten (10) 

calendar days after written notice from City to Lessee. 

               (b)          A violation of any city code provision under Chapter 4, Airport, Chapter 10, 

Buildings and Construction, and Chapter 26, Nuisances, resulting in a citation, summons or other 

enforcement action by city staff. 

               (c)           An unapproved or unauthorized transfer of any interest acquired under this 

Agreement. 

               (d)          The failure to comply with any of the insurance requirements stated in this 

Agreement. 

28

#5.



               (e)          The discovery by City that any material information provided by Lessee related to 

this Agreement or related to Lessee’s use of the Premises is materially false. 

16. Remedies.  In the event of any material default or breach by Lessee, City may at any time 

thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting City in the exercise of any right or remedy 

which City may have by reason of such default or breach, avail itself of the following remedies, which are 

cumulative and exclusive: 

               (a)          City may recover possession of the leased Premises by any lawful means available 

to it, including self-entry, in which case this lease Agreement shall terminate immediately, and Lessee shall 

immediately remove all personal property, including the aircraft.  City may remove such property to another 

location with Lessee assuming any risk of loss or damage to such property. 

               (b)          City shall be entitled to recover from Lessee all damages incurred by City by 

reason of Lessee’s default, including, but not limited to, the cost of recovering possession of the Premises, 

amount of delinquent rent, interest at the maximum amounts allowed by law on delinquent rent, and 

reasonable attorneys’ fees. 

17. The Lessee agrees to indemnify Lessor against all costs and expenses lawfully and reasonably 

incurred in or about the premises in the defense of action or proceedings, or in the discharge of the premises 

for any charge, lien or encumbrance or in obtaining possession after default of the Lessee, or the termination 

of this lease. 

18. The Lessee agrees to remove any buildings on the premises that the Lessor determines to be a 

determent to the premises at the sole expense of the Lessee.  Lessor reserves the right (but shall not be 

obligated to Lessee) to maintain and keep in repair the landing area of the airport and all publicly owned 

facilities of the airport, together with the right to direct and control all activities of the Lessee in this regard. 

19. Lessor reserves the right further to develop or improve the landing area and all publicly owned 

air navigation facilities of the airport as it sees fit, regardless of the desires or views of the Lessee, and without 

interference or hindrance. 

 

29

#5.



20. Lessor reserves the right to take any action it considers necessary to protect the aerial 

approaches of the airport against obstruction, together with the right to prevent Lessee from erecting, or 

permitting to be erected, any building or other structure on the airport which in the opinion of Lessor would 

limit the usefulness of the airport or constitute a hazard to aircraft. 

21. During time of war or national emergency Lessor shall have the right to enter into an agreement 

with the United States Government for military or naval use of part or all of the landing area, the publicly 

owned air navigation facilities and/or other area or facilities of the Airport.  If any such agreement is executed, 

the provision of the agreement with the Lessor shall be suspended.   

22. It is understood and agreed that the rights granted by this agreement will not be exercised in 

such a way to interfere with or adversely affect the use, operation, maintenance, or development of a federally 

obligated Airport.  

23. All covenants, stipulation and agreements to this lease shall extend to and bind the successors 

and assigns of the parties respectively by and to whom the same have been made.  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals on the day and year first above 

written. 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

        A Municipal Corporation 

 

 

   BY_____________________________ 

            Tom Sanders, Public Works Director 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

 

 

                   BY_______________________________ 

                       Frank Cross 

 

         

 

                BY ______________________________ 

          Sherry Cross 

 

 

                

 

 
30

#5.



 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI     ) 

        )     SS 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH        ) 

 

 

On this _____________ day of  _________________, 20 _________, before me personally appeared 

____Tom Sanders____, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he is the Public 

Works Director of the City of Moberly, Missouri, a municipal corporation, and that the seal affixed to the 

foregoing instrument is the seal of said municipality and that said instrument was signed and sealed in behalf 

of said municipality by authority of its City Council and said Public Works Director, __Tom Sanders______ 

acknowledged said instrument to be the free act of deed of said municipality. 

 

 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office 

in Moberly, the day and year first above written. 

 

My Commission expires ____________________________. 

 

 

                  _________________________________ 

                    Notary Public 

 

 

STATE OF MISSOURI     ) 

        )     SS 

COUNTY OF RANDOLPH        ) 

 

 

On this ______ day of ___________________, 2023, before me, the undersigned, a notary in the said County, 

personally appeared Frank and Sherry Cross, personally known to me who declared themselves to be a 

married couple and declared that said instrument was signed by them, and acknowledged said instrument to 

be their free act and deed.  

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal subscribed and affixed in said COUNTY AND STATE above 

written. 

 

My Commission expires ____________________________. 

 

 

 

                  _________________________________ 

                    Notary Public 

31

#5.



32

#5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving A Proposal From Vandevanter For A 5 Year 

Pumping System Maintenance Service Contract And Authorizing The City 

Manager To Execute The Agreement On Behalf Of The City. 

  

Summary: This service contract will include routine maintenance of each listed system 

per the manufacturer’s listed operations and maintenance schedules. 

Vandevanter is the licensed sales & service provider for the two systems 

referenced. Proposed cost for this effort is $7,350.00 for the initial year with 

scheduled costs for each of the successive years. The service supplies the 

necessary specialized tools, testing equipment and technical skills necessary to 

maintain each covered system in optimal condition. Parts and repairs not 

included in this preventive maintenance contract will receive a 5% discount. 

Replacement costs for the individual pumps included in this preventive 

maintenance plan can exceed $100,000. 

 

 

  

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Contracted Services 

  

Account Number: 301.114.5406 

  

Available Budget $: 24,945.66 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes     x  Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

33

#6.



BILL NO. ______      RESOLUTION NO.______ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 

PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE PUMP/CONTROL PANEL SCHEDULED 

MAINTENANCE CONTRACT WITH VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING/COGENT 

COMPANY. 

 

WHEREAS, City staff seeks to extend the life of certain pumping systems in place at the 

WWTP Influent Lift Station and the Seven Bridges Lift Station by obtaining a preventative 

maintenance agreement with a qualified vendor; and 

WHEREAS, utilities staff approached Vandevanter Engineering for a maintenance 

contract since Vandevanter is the sales and service provider for the Flygt pumps in use at the 

above locations; and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto is a Preventative Maintenance Pump/Control Panel 

Scheduled Maintenance Contract (the “Contract”) from Vandevanter Engineering, a registered 

fictitious name of Cogent, Inc (“Vandevanter”) to provide pumping system maintenance for a 

period of five years for the initial sum of $7,350.00 for the first year and increased amounts 

thereafter.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to enter into the attached Contract with Vandevanter for a term of five (5) years for the 

sums stated therein. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

34

#6.



  
  

 

 
 
 

 

 

     VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING                            
Fax: 636-343-1720            1550 Larkin Williams Road                                   Proposal No. OP- 
After Hours: 636-343-8880                               Fenton, MO 63026                      Page 1 of 6 

 
 

Proposal No. OP-489808 

February 21, 2023 

 
 

Emily Lute 
 City of Moberly, MO 
 
RE: PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 
 
Dear Emily 
 
Thanks for meeting with me last week and for showing me the wastewater pump stations 
at Waste Water Treatment Plant.  Per your request, Vandevanter Engineering has prepared 
the following Preventative Maintenance Contract.  
 
A preventative maintenance program performed on the wastewater pumps is a very 
beneficial tool for several reasons.  It will enable your personnel the ability to track the 
performance of their pumping equipment, plan for scheduled repairs based on the 
inspection reports received from the preventative maintenance program. The program will 
also isolate problems with pumping equipment when they are minor in nature and less 
expensive to repair and thus will extend the life of the pumping equipment. A preventative 
maintenance program is an inexpensive insurance policy on the pumping equipment 
against major catastrophic equipment failures, will help minimize expensive repairs and 
pump station down time.   
 
At the present time, Vandevanter Engineering has more than 125 individual maintenance 
contracts covering more than 700 pumps in Missouri and Illinois.   
 
Upon acceptance of preventative maintenance program, the City will receive a 5% 
discount on all repair parts on the equipment listed in the contract and new replacement 
equipment purchased on the preventative maintenance contract as a savings incentive for 
the City. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

35

#6.



  
  

 

 
 
 

 

 

     VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING                            
Fax: 636-343-1720            1550 Larkin Williams Road                                   Proposal No. OP- 
After Hours: 636-343-8880                               Fenton, MO 63026                      Page 2 of 6 

 
 

City of Moberly , MO 
 
If after reviewing this Preventative Maintenance Contract proposal, you have any questions 
or comments, please feel free to contact me at (636) 343-8880.  If the proposal meets with 
your approval, please sign, date and mail or fax a copy back to our office and we will be 
happy to schedule your initial inspection work. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to furnish this Preventative Maintenance Contract proposal 
to the City of Moberly, MO.  If I can be of further assistance to you on this or future projects, 
please let me know. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 

VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING CO. 
 
 
 

Ben Azerolo 
Aftermarket/Service Representative 

 
 
Enclosure: Preventative Maintenance Contract 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

36

#6.



  
  

 

 
 
 

 

 

     VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING                            
Fax: 636-343-1720            1550 Larkin Williams Road                                   Proposal No. OP- 
After Hours: 636-343-8880                               Fenton, MO 63026                      Page 3 of 6 

 
 

 
DATE: 2-21-23 
PROJECT NAME: City of Moberly, MO 
 
VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING is pleased to offer a Pump/Control Panel Scheduled Maintenance 
Contract for the following equipment installed at. 
Description of the equipment is as follows: 
  

See Equipment List 
 

SCOPE OF CONTRACT 
 
A scheduled preventative maintenance agreement will consist of a complete and thorough 11-point 
inspection of each pump and controls as listed above.  This inspection will be on an annual basis.  
Following each visit to the pump station, the owner will receive a report of all findings.  Prior to all 
inspections, the City representative will be advised of our impending visit. 
 
The owner will also receive a 5% discount on all repairs parts and/or replacement equipment 
covered by this Maintenance Contract which is in addition to this periodic preventative maintenance 
agreement mentioned above. 
 
ELEVEN (11) POINT CHECKLIST 
 
1) Check motor insulation values to ground using meggar. 
2) Check for any loose or faulty connections in control panel. 
3) Check voltage supply (pumps off). 
4) Check voltage supply (pumps on). 
5) Check for correct rotation of equipment. 
6) Check condition of face of volute in respect to discharge connection. 
7) Check amperage draw on all three phases for proper balance. 
8) Check winding resistance of motors through pump cables. 
9) Check condition of impeller and wear rings in each pump and impeller gaps on N-

Impeller pumps. 
10) Check condition of level sensing equipment. 
11) Check condition of oil in each pump and change oil at each inspection, replacing all 

inspection plug o-rings. 
 
5 YEAR CONTRACT FOR CHARGES CONSISTING OF ABOVE LISTED SERVICES 
 
ANNUAL INSPECTION(2023-2024)………………………………… $ 7,350.00 PER YEAR _______Initial 
 

ANNUAL INSPECTION(2025-2026)………………………….……….$ 7,840.00  PER YEAR _______Initial 
 

ANNUAL INSPECTION(2027)………………………………….……….$ 8,076.00  PER YEAR _______Initial 

37

#6.



  
  

 

 
 
 

 

 

     VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING                            
Fax: 636-343-1720            1550 Larkin Williams Road                                   Proposal No. OP- 
After Hours: 636-343-8880                               Fenton, MO 63026                      Page 4 of 6 

 
 

 

 

City of Moberly, MO 
Preventative Maintenance Contract 
 
Charges are payable upon receipt of each completed inspection report.  Prices are guaranteed for one 
year.  Any additional work not covered by this contract will be billed at standard rates, less 5% parts 
and/or replacement equipment, on equipment listed in the contract.   
 
NOTES: Emergency service NOT INCLUDED in this contract, but is available at $135.00 per 

hour during business hours, $203.00 per hour evenings and Saturdays, and $270.00 
per hour on Sundays and Holidays, less discount. 

 
TERMS: Payment terms are NET THIRTY (30) DAYS after receipt of completed inspection 
  report. 
 
Any additional repairs parts and/or equipment replacement will be performed only when requested 
by customer, and will be in addition to this contract, less 5% discount. 
 
Vandevanter Engineering Co., Inc. assumes no liability for loss of use, any direct, indirect or 
consequential damage of any kind in respect to the use or operation of pumps or any equipment or 
accessories used in connection therewith. 
 
The owner's responsibilities will be: 
 
 1) Have a representative from the City available to allow entry to controls/pump station. 
 
All parts and labor are subject to the manufacturer's published warranty. 
 
This agreement shall be effective from its signed date and shall continue in effect until termination 
by mutual agreement or by either party upon thirty (30) days prior written notice. 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Ben Azerolo, Aftermarket/Service Representative 
 
ACCEPTED THIS DATE:___________________________________COMPANY____________________________________ 
 
BY:_________________________________________________________TITLE:_________________________________________ 
 

 

 

 

 

38

#6.



  
  

 

 
 
 

 

 

     VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING                            
Fax: 636-343-1720            1550 Larkin Williams Road                                   Proposal No. OP- 
After Hours: 636-343-8880                               Fenton, MO 63026                      Page 5 of 6 

 
 

 

 

 

EQUIPMENT LIST 

 

WWTP INFLUENT LIFT STATION: 

THREE (3) Flygt 3171, 25 Hp 3/460v 

 

SEVEN BRIDGES LIFT STATION: 

THREE (3) Flygt 3301, 85 Hp 3/460v 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39

#6.



  
  

 

 
 
 

 

 

     VANDEVANTER ENGINEERING                            
Fax: 636-343-1720            1550 Larkin Williams Road                                   Proposal No. OP- 
After Hours: 636-343-8880                               Fenton, MO 63026                      Page 6 of 6 

 
 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Price is FOB factory.  Price does not include any freight charges.  Price does not include any applicable duties or sales tax, 
use tax, excise tax, value-added or other similar taxes that may apply to this equipment and/or project.  Unless specifically 
stated, price does not include manual or automatic controls, starters, protective or signal devices, wiring, anchor bolts, 
gauges, vibration isolation devices, installation, startup or testing. 

If the price is included in a proposal, the price is firm for receipt of an order within 30 days of the date shown on the 
proposal. Any additional terms and conditions included in the proposal are specifically included in these terms and 
conditions. 

Payment is due upon receipt of the invoice.  An interest charge of 1-1/2% per month will be added to past due 
balances.  Retainage of any invoiced amount is unacceptable unless specifically agreed to by Company at the time of order, 
and shall in no case exceed a period of 120 days.  If payments are not timely received by Company, and this account is 
turned over to an attorney for collections, Customer agrees to pay all reasonable costs and attorney fees incurred in 
collection of the past due amounts. 

Payment of “commercial transaction” invoices by credit card will be charged a fee based upon Cogent’s average discount 
rate for credit card transactions for the prior calendar year. This fee will change annually and is currently 2.55%. 

All equipment either rented from or through Company is subject to all of the terms and conditions listed on the back of 
the rental contract.  Pricing does not include any overtime running of power equipment. 

In no event shall Company’s obligations and liabilities under this Agreement include any direct, indirect, punitive, special, 
incidental or consequential damages or losses that Customer may suffer or incur in connection with this sale, service or 
rental, including, but not limited to, loss of revenue or profits, damages or losses as a result of Customer’s inability to 
operate, perform its obligations to third persons or injuries to goodwill; nor shall Company’s liability extend to damages 
or losses Customer may suffer or incur as a result of such claims, suits or other proceedings made or instituted against 
Customer by third parties.  Customer remises, releases and discharges Company from any and all liability or damages 
which might be caused by failure to deliver any equipment within the agreed time by Company. 

Customer shall be responsible for determining the good operating condition of all materials and equipment prior to 
accepting the materials and equipment. NO WARRANTY OR GUARANTEE, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING ANY 
WARRANTY AS TO MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE IS MADE UNLESS THE SAME IS 
SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN WRITING AND ACCEPTED IN WRITING BY COMPANY, BUT IN SUCH CASE THE WARRANTY 
OR GUARANTEE IS LIMITED AS ABOVE PROVIDED. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company will pass through to the 
Customer any warranty provided by the manufacturer of any equipment supplied by Company. 

Customer covenants and agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Company harmless from any claims, damages or liability 
arising out of the use, maintenance or delivery of the equipment or materials purchased or rented hereunder. Customer 
shall further defend, indemnify and hold Company harmless from any and all damages to third persons or to property 
caused by Customer’s use or possession of the equipment or materials, to the fullest extent allowable by law. 

 In connection with a proposal, if Customer has any further questions or comments regarding the proposal, please feel free 
to contact Company.  If the proposal meets with Customer’s approval, please sign, date and mail or fax a copy of the 
proposal back to Company’s office, and the identified equipment will be ordered and/or scheduled for delivery. 

This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state where the Company’s branch office is located from which the 
equipment is rented or purchased. Customer further agrees that venue and jurisdiction shall be appropriate in the county 
in which Company’s branch office is located from which the equipment was rented or purchased.  Any provisions hereof 
which may prove unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity of any other provision hereof.  

Revised February 2019 

40

#6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Parks & Recreation 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into Amendment 

Number 1 To Task Order Number 19 With Bartlett & West, Inc. 

Supplementing A Master Agreement Dated March 3, 2020 To Provide 

Engineering Services For The Kiwanis Park Shelter House And Restroom 

Building. 

  

Summary: Because the integrity of the Kiwanis Park project depends on establishing an 

appropriate base under the hardscape items from the parking lot to the 

pavilion, geo-tech is needed. The site is former pasture ground and is very 

soft. In the past, some staff level digging on site revealed that in some places 

there is soft material as deep as 18” before getting to decent clay.  

 

Geo-tech work can be subcontracted by Bartlett & West as provided for in the 

original agreement. The attached amendment provides for said geo-tech 

services, the results of which will be used by Bartlett & West in developing 

the specifications for construction. The attached amendment reduces the base 

fee by $1,500 and adds the $4,200 for geo-tech services for Kiwanis Park. 

 

Additionally, while the geo-tech company (Alpha Omega) is mobilized, Tom 

Sanders is having them handle geotech adding (2) holes at (1) location for the 

proposed extension location of Fowler road to determine subsoil conditions for 

$1,500. 

Attached, you will find the Resolution, Amendment, and Task Order 19. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the Resolution. 

  

Fund Name: Recreation – Contract Services 

  

Account Number: 115.044.5406 

  

Available Budget $: $122,027.80 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes    X   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

41

#7.



BILL NO._________                     RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO TASK ORDER NUMBER 19 WITH BARTLETT & 

WEST, INC., SUPPLEMENTING A MASTER AGREEMENT DATED MARCH 3, 2020, 

TO PROVIDE ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE KIWANIS PARK SHELTER 

HOUSE AND RESTROOM BUILDING.  

 

WHEREAS, it was determined that geo-technical services were required to develop 

specifications for the contract and Bartlett & West will contract with Alpha Omega for said 

services; and 

WHEREAS, attached hereto is an Amendment to the contract previously approved on 

February 23, 2023 for this project which amendment provides for the needed geo-technical 

services; and  

WHEREAS, City staff recommends the approval of Amendment No. 1 to Task Order 

#19 in the form attached hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, THAT Amendment No. 1 to Task Order Number 19 is 

hereby approved in all respects and the City Manager is hereby directed to execute the 

amendment on behalf of the City and to take such other and further action as may be necessary to 

complete the intent of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

42

#7.



  
 

Amendment Page 1 of 2 09/21 

BARTLETT & WEST, INC. 

MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT  

FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 01 

TO TASK ORDER NO. 19 

 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Moberly, Missouri (Client) and Bartlett & West, Inc. (Consultant) have entered into an 
Agreement dated March 3, 2020, hereinafter referred to as the “MSA,” for professional services, and  
 
WHEREAS, Client and Consultant have entered into Task Order No. 19. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, Client and Consultant agree to amend Task Order No. 19 as follows: 
 
 

1. CONTRACTUAL REVISIONS:  Modify the executed contract dated February 21, 2023 to reflect the 
scope between Bartlett & West, Inc. and Alpha Omega Geotechnical, Inc. for geotechnical services at 
the Kiwanis Park shelter and parking lot and two (2) additional borings as requested by the city.  
 

Amend the executed TO 19 agreement as follows: 
TO 19 Paragraph D: Modify paragraph to reflect a lump sum fee of $92,442.00. The total 
Bartlett & West fee including geotechnical expenses will be $98,142.00. The estimated Alpha 
Omega Geotechnical fee of $5700 includes $4200 for the Kiwanis Park site and an additional 
$1500 for 2 additional remote borings that is separate from the Kiwanis Park project.” 
 

TO 19 Paragraph D.1: Modify paragraph to remove the $1500 expense allowance.  
 

Exhibit A: Add a heading “Geotechnical” between Building / Architectural and Structural 
headings with a bullet to read “Bartlett & West to contract with Alpha Omega Geotechnical, 
Inc. for geotechnical services at the Kiwanis Park shelter and parking lot and 2 additional 
remote borings. This work includes 4 borings at the Kiwanis Park parking lot, 2 borings at the 
Kiwanis Park shelter and 2 additional borings at remote sites as requested by the city of 
Moberly.” 
 
Exhibit A, Exclusions: Delete the first bullet regarding geotechnical services.  
 
Exhibit A, Client’s Responsibility: Delete line 2. 

 
Except as provided in this or previous Amendments, all other terms and conditions of the MSA shall remain in 
full force and effect. In the event of any conflict between the terms and conditions of the MSA and the terms and 
conditions of this or previous Amendments, the MSA shall control unless otherwise stated.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in 
this Amendment, effective this 7th day of March, 2023. 
  

43

#7.



  
 

Amendment Page 2 of 2 09/21 

 

CLIENT:  CONSULTANT: 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI  BARTLETT & WEST, INC. 

By:   By:   

Print Name:   Print Name:  

Title:   Title:   

Date Signed:   Date Signed:  

 

44

#7.



45

#7.



46

#7.



Steven Wise

Project Manager II

2/23/2023

47

#7.



48

#7.



49

#7.



50

#7.



51

#7.



52

#7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Purchase An International 

Dump Truck For Public Utilities. 

  

Summary: Utilities staff routinely performs system maintenance and inspections within 

sewer lines and manholes throughout Moberly’s sewer collection system in 

addition to water leak repairs, surface restorations, etc. This unit replaces a 

2010 unit with over 35,000 miles, over 4,200 hours. This purchase is being 

made as a sole source, as heavy equipment availability in 2023 is unlike 

anything experienced over the last 75 years, and Rush Truck Center has this 

unit in stock (see included email.) Purchase price for this single axle Dump 

Truck  $136,200.00 and is scheduled for purchase in the Current CIP budget. 

Information from vendors reports that due to new emissions and other vehicle 

regulations forthcoming, delivery of 2024, 2025 models and after are likely to 

be delayed for substantial time periods. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Capital Improvement Plan, Distribution & Collection 

  

Account Number: 301.112.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 98,985.50 with balance ($37,214.50) from Operating Reserve Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
     Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes x      Proposals M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report   x    Other         Passed Failed 

 

53

#8.



BILL NO.________      RESOLUTION NO._______ 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE AN 

INTERNATIONAL DUMP TRUCK FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES. 

 

WHEREAS, due to difficulty in finding available dump trucks, City staff approached 

Rush Truck Center of Missouri for a bid on a 2024 dump truck because Rush has units already 

allocated to it by the manufacturer; and 

WHEREAS, Rush provided a quote of $124,125.00 (with an estimated 12% to 15% cost 

increase by the time of delivery in 2024) for a 2024 International MV607 SBA dump truck; and  

WHEREAS, City staff recommends accepting the bid of Rush and purchasing the 

International dump truck. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to purchase the dump truck for $124,125.00 with an estimated increase of 12% to 15% 

in surcharges and delivery fees in 2024 and to take such other and further action as may be 

necessary to accomplish the purpose of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

54

#8.



55

#8.



56

#8.



57

#8.



58

#8.



59

#8.



60

#8.



61

#8.



62

#8.



63

#8.



64

#8.



65

#8.



66

#8.



67

#8.



68

#8.



69

#8.



70

#8.



71

#8.



72

#8.



73

#8.



74

#8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting A Permanent Sewer Line Easement From Superior 

Watercraft Inc. 

  

Summary: The city is working on a project on Highway 24 East to extend sewer service 

for new business development. The city is asking owners of Superior 

Watercraft property to grant the city an easement for the new sewer extension 

that will be located in a corridor adjacent to the highway and outside of the 

ROWs.  

The property owners have already executed their easement and the city needs 

to officially accept this easement from the property owner to complete the 

transaction. This action will officially accept the easements. The addresses of 

the properties currently granting the easements are: 

 

1350 E. HIGHWAY 24           Gill, Todd & Sheryl 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
       Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report  x     Other  Easement       Passed Failed 

 

75

#9.



BILL NO. _________     RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A PERMANENT SEWER LINE EASEMENT FROM 

SUPERIOR WATERCRAFT INC. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Utilities Department was in need of a permanent sewer line 

easement on property owned by Superior Watercraft, Inc., to install permanent sewer 

infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, Superior Watercraft, Inc., was willing to provide the needed easement on 

the terms and conditions contained in the form attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, City staff requests that the Council accept the Easement in the form 

provided and further authorize the Mayor and City Manager to take such other and further action 

to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution and further authorizes the recording of each 

document. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Moberly hereby accepts the 

attached easement and further authorizes the Mayor and City Manager to take such other and 

further action to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution and further authorizes the recording 

of such easement. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       __________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 
 

76

#9.



77

#9.



78

#9.



79

#9.



80

#9.



1 
 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving The Acceptance Of A Grant From the Department of 

Health & Senior Services. 

 

Summary: Water Fluoridation Grant Summary 
 

On January 23, 2023, WTP Chief Operator Matt Everts received an email from the 
Department of Health and Senior Services (DHSS), Office of Dental Health, 
regarding the fluoride test results from 1st quarter of 2022.  
During the discussion a question was posed from DHSS if we needed any fluoride 
supplies or equipment. Matt responded with “how about a year supply of 
fluoride?” Their response was “how much will that cost?” Matt responded with an 
estimated rough annual cost of $6,847.40. DHSS is willing to pay our fluoride 
supplier up to $10,000 and we would just order as we needed as we do now with 
the invoices paid directly by DHSS. 
If the City agrees to enter into the fluoridation contract, we would also be eligible 
for reimbursement of equipment upgrades to our existing fluoridation program 
and includes dosing system equipment, laboratory equipment and supplies for an 
amount slightly less than $6,000. The total grant amount should be for up to 
$16,000. 
 
What the City would agree to for Moberly to receive grant funds. 

1. All equipment ordered by June 1, 2023. 
2. Provide before and after pictures of existing and new equipment. 
3. Agree to DHSS site visits. 
4. Complete DHSS Community Water Fluoridation Basics training no later 

than 6-1-23. 
5. Provide DNR with quarterly test samples (we already do this). 
6. Provide monthly test results to the Department by the 15th of the month 

for 5 years. 
7. Maintain equipment for 5 years during contract period. (Staff already 

maintains the existing equipment in need of replacement.) 
8. Maintain a level of fluoridation between .6 and 1.0 mg/l. Current feed rate 

is to a  .75 mg/l target. 
9. Maintain water fluoridation for 5 years during contract period.  

WTP staff has the ability to remove the existing equipment system and install the 
new components with little or no outside assistance. The supplies included will 
serve to enhance staff’s ability to monitor the fluoride treatment process and is 
expected to positively impact dosage precision and accuracy. 
 

  

 

81

#10.



2 
 

 

 

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to present a resolution at the next scheduled city council meeting 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

  

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report   x    Other  Fact Sheet       Passed Failed 

 

82

#10.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO.________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A FLUORIDATION GRANT FROM THE MISSOURI 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SENIOR SERVICES. 

 

WHEREAS, the Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services (“DHHS”) has 

offered a grant up to $16,000.00 to the City for fluoride and equipment upgrades at the water 

treatment plant; and 

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions of the grant are detailed in the attached 

“Deliverables and Outcomes” document provided by DHHS; and  

WHEREAS, City staff requests that the City Council accept the grant and authorize the 

City Manager to execute any documents required by DHHS to receive the grant award. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby accepts the grant 

award from DHHS and authorizes the City Manager to execute such documents necessary for 

grant acceptance and to take such other and further measures as may be necessary to complete 

the grant funding. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

           

                       _________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

83

#10.



1. DELIVERABLES AND OUTCOMES 

1.1 The Contractor shall have all equipment ordered prior to June 1, 2023. 

1.2 The Contractor shall provide “before” pictures, which are pictures of the current water 

fluoridation setup within the well house or water plant, including any testing equipment 

before any repairs or replacement provided under this contract and “after” pictures, 

which are pictures after the purchase, receipt, and installation of new equipment or new 

setup provided under this contract.  The “after” pictures must show the new water 

fluoridation setup within the well house or water plant and testing equipment (if 

purchased). 

1.3 Upon request by the Department, the Contractor agrees to site visits by the 

Department’s staff. 

1.4 The Contractor agrees to complete the Department’s Community Water Fluoridation 

Basics Training no later than June 1, 2023.   

1.5 The Contractor shall be in compliance with all DNR regulatory requirements and all 

Missouri statute requirements for upgrading the water fluoridation equipment. 

1.6 The Contractor agrees to provide DNR with quarterly test samples as required by 

Missouri statute.  DNR will test the quarterly test samples and use the results in data 

collection and reporting as required by regulatory and Missouri statute. 

1.7 The Contractor agrees to provide the Department with monthly fluoride test results for 

a minimum of five (5) years.  The Contractor shall email or fax to the Department the 

monthly fluoride test results no later than the fifteenth (15th) of the month following the 

month in which tests were conducted.  The Department will use the monthly fluoride 

test results for public health data collection and reporting. 

1.8 The Contractor agrees to maintain the water fluoridation and testing equipment and to 

provide the fluoride additive to keep the fluoridation system operational beyond the 

contract period for a minimum of five (5) years. 

1.9 The Contractor agrees to maintain the level of fluoride in the water system within the 

recommended optimal range of 0.6 – 1.0 parts per million (ppm).  Failure to maintain 

the optimal range may result in contact from the Department. 

1.10 The Contractor agrees to continue community water fluoridation in the public water 

system beyond the contract period for a minimum of five (5) years.  Failure to maintain 

water fluoridation at the public water system at the recommended optimal range may 

result in the Contractor to return of grant funding to the Department on a pro-rated 

basis.  

84

#10.



2. BUDGET AND ALLOWABLE COSTS  

2.1 The Department will pay the Contractor a firm, fixed price based on the approved 

Equipment and Supplies Listing, Attachment B, which is attached hereto and is 

incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein, upon satisfactory completion of 

the deliverables and submission and approval of all required reports and invoices.  

2.2 The Department reserves the right to reallocate or reduce contract funds at any time 

during the contract period due to underutilization of contract funds or changes in the 

availability of program funds.  The Department will provide the Contractor with thirty 

(30) days prior written notification of any reallocation.    

2.3 The Contractor shall follow competitive procurement practices.  

3. INVOICING AND PAYMENT  

3.1 The Contractor shall understand and agree the state reserves the right to make contract 

payments to the contractor through electronic funds transfer (EFT).  Therefore, prior to 

any payments becoming due under the contract, the contractor must update their vendor 

registration with their ACH-EFT payment information at 

https://MissouriBUYS.mo.gov.  

3.2 The Contractor shall invoice the Department on the Contractor’s original descriptive 

business invoice form.  The Contractor shall use uniquely identifiable invoice numbers 

to distinguish an invoice from a previously submitted invoice. 

3.3 The Contractor shall submit invoices monthly.  Invoices shall be due by the last day of 

the month following the month in which the Contractor provided services under the 

contract.  The Contractor shall perform the services prior to invoicing the Department.   

3.3.1 The Contractor shall submit back-up documentation (third-party vendor invoices, a 

copy of the check if paid by check, etc.) with each invoice. 

3.4 The Department will pay the Contractor monthly upon the receipt and approval of an 

invoice and report(s) prepared according to the terms of this contract.   

3.5 The Contractor shall submit invoices and reports electronically to:  

OralHealth@health.mo.gov. 

3.6 The Contractor shall submit the final invoice by June 8, 2023 after the contract ending 

date.  The Department shall have no obligation to pay any invoice submitted after the 

due date.   

3.7 If the Department denies a request by the Contractor for payment or reimbursement, the 

Department will provide the Contractor with written notice of the reason(s) for denial. 

85

#10.

https://missouribuys.mo.gov/
mailto:OralHealth@health.mo.gov


3.8 Notwithstanding any other payment provision of this contract, if the Contractor fails to 

perform required work or services, fails to submit reports when due, or is indebted to 

the United States government, the Department may withhold payment or reject invoices 

under this contract. 

3.9 If the Contractor is overpaid by the Department, the Contractor shall provide the 

Department (1) with a check payable as instructed by the Department or (2) deduct the 

overpayment from an invoice as requested by the Department. 

3.9.1 For payment by check, the Contractor shall issue a check made payable to “DHSS-DA-

Fee Receipts” and mail the check to: 

  Missouri Department of Health and Senior Services 

  Division of Administration, Fee Receipts 

  P.O. Box 570 

  920 Wildwood Drive 

  Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0570 

3.10 If the Department used a federal grant to pay the Contractor, the Catalog of Federal 

Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number assigned to the grant and the dollar amount paid 

from the grant is available on the State of Missouri Vendor Services Portal under the 

Vendor Payment section at 

https://www.vendorservices.mo.gov/vendorservices/Portal/Default.aspx.  The CFDA 

name is available at https://sam.gov/content/home. 

3.11 Other than the payments and reimbursements specified above, no other payments or 

reimbursements shall be made to the Contractor. 

 

86

#10.

https://www.vendorservices.mo.gov/vendorservices/Portal/Default.aspx
https://sam.gov/content/home


1

Dana Ulmer

From: Matt Everts
Sent: Thursday, March 9, 2023 12:13 PM
To: Dana Ulmer
Subject: FW: Draft contract
Attachments: DELIVERABLES AND OUTCOMES.docx

This is what I just received. 
 
Ma   
 

From: Sullentrup, Gwendolyn <Gwen.Sullentrup@health.mo.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, March 9, 2023 12:03 PM 
To: Matt Everts <meverts@cityofmoberly.com> 
Subject: RE: Draft contract 
 
Here is the deliverables and outcomes, which is the por on that the city agrees to.  Note that nothing is wri en in 
stone.  We put the 5 year s pula on in to encourage ci es to con nue a er we give them funding.  That way they don’t 
stop 6 months down the road and we could have used the money elsewhere. 
Thank you. 
Gwen 
 
Gwen Sullentrup 
Phone: (573) 619-8849  Fax:  (573) 751-0702 
Oral Health Website: oralhealth.mo.gov 

 
 

From: Matt Everts <meverts@cityofmoberly.com>  
Sent: Thursday, March 9, 2023 11:53 AM 
To: Sullentrup, Gwendolyn <Gwen.Sullentrup@health.mo.gov> 
Subject: Draft contract 
 
Gwen 
 
Do you possibly have a dra  of the contract that the council is going to have to enter into for the U li es Director to give 
them an idea of what they will be signing? 
 
Ma   

87

#10.



88

#10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Accepting Proposals From Vendors (2) For Installation of CSO 

Basin Replacement Fence Systems And Authorizing The City Manager To 

Execute The Agreement On Behalf Of The City. 

  

Summary: This purchase includes removal of existing and installation of new fencing systems at 

each of two locations, Taylor Street CSO and Rollins Street CSO basins. The vendors 

considered both perform fence installation services within the Moberly area. 

Proposed cost for this effort is $16,125.05 from . Wastewater staff would like to 

move forward with Lute Custom Fencing for the fence replacements at Rollins and 

Taylor St. CSO’s. Both bidders have proposed the same type of work be done. 

Woven wire will be installed around both basins along with a strand of barbed wire. 

An access gate will be installed at the Rollins basin for staff access for to check flow 

meters on the South end of the property. New gates will be installed at Taylor Street 

system as well. The contractor will remove and dispose of existing fencing. Proposals 

were received sealed by the Moberly City Clerk and opened at 10:00 AM, 

Wednesday, February 8, 2023. 

 

Vendor Project Cost 

Winkler Excavating & Custom 

Fencing 

36121 Kayak Ave. 

Excello, MO 65247 

660-833-7171 

 

 

$23,077.75 

Lute Custom Fencing 

15248 Monroe Road 923 

Madison, MO 65263 

660-651-9097 

$16,125.05 

 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Lift Stations & Lagoon Maintenance 

  

Account Number: 301.114.5304 

  

Available Budget $: Overspent and to be transferred from Operating Reserve 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Lucas     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report    x   Other  Proposals       Passed Failed 

89

#11.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO._________ 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF LUTE CUSTOM FENCING, LLC., AND 

AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING FOR CSO BASIN REPLACEMENT FENCE 

SYSTEMS. 

 

WHEREAS, City staff sought bids for the removal of fencing and installation of new 

fencing at the Taylor Street and Rollins Street CSOs; and 

WHEREAS, two (2) bids were received with the bid from Lute Custom Fencing, LLC., 

(“Lute”) being the lowest responsible bid in the amount of $16,125.05; and 

WHEREAS, City staff seeks acceptance of the bid and authority to contract with Lute 

for new fencing based upon the attached written bid. 

THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council accepts the bid of Lute in the 

amount of $16,125.05 and authorizes the City Manager to contract for said services and to take 

such other and further action necessary to accomplish the purpose of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 20th day of March, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

        

        _____________________________ 

        Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

90

#11.



1 

CITY OF MOBERLY CONTRACT  
PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

FOR CSO BASIN REPLACEMENT FENCE SYSTEMS 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION     

 
1. Scope of Work and Project Specifications, Authorization of Projects 
2. Amounts Not To Exceed 
3. Completion Time 
4. Bonding 
5.    Contractor’s Insurance 
6.    Hold Harmless Agreement 
7.    Permits 
8.  Payments 
9.  Extra Work/Changes 
10.  Discharge of Employees 
11.  Assignment  
12.   Subcontracting 
13.  Accident Prevention  
14.  Equal Opportunity 
15.  Domestic Purchasing Policy 
16.  Americans with Disabilities Act 
17.  Material & Workmanship 
18.  Interference  
19.  No Third-Party Beneficiary 
20.  Termination for Default 
21.  Termination for Convenience   
22.  Construction Safety Program Requirements 
23.  Unauthorized Aliens Prohibited  
24.  No Waiver of Immunities 
25.  Amendment  
26.  Governing Law and Venue 
27.  General Laws 
28.  Notices  
29.  Entire Contract 
 Contract Signature Page          

 Exhibits: 

A  Pricing and Proposal  
B Scope of Work 

  

91

#11.



2 

CITY OF MOBERLY CONTRACT 
PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 

FOR CSO BASIN REPLACEMENT FENCE SYSTEMS 
 

THIS CONTRACT (hereinafter “Contract”) by and between the City of Moberly, Missouri, 
a municipal corporation (hereinafter called “City”), and Lute Custom Fencing, LLC., organized in 
the State of Missouri and with authority to transact business within the State of Missouri 
(hereinafter called “Contractor”), is made and entered into on the date of the last signatory noted 
below (hereinafter “Effective Date”).  City and Contractor are each individually referred to herein 
as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 
 

WHEREAS, City has a need for a Contractor to remove and replace fencing at the Taylor 
Street and Rollins Street CSOs as defined herein and further described in the Scope of Work, 
Plans and Project Specifications set forth herein and other Contract Documents; and  
 

WHEREAS, in response to City’s request for a bid for all labor and materials to remove 
and replace fencing Contractor has submitted a proposal and pricing dated February 21, 2023, 
which is attached as Exhibit A; and  
 

WHEREAS, City has selected Contractor based upon Contractor’s representations that 
Contractor is qualified to complete the Designated Project in accordance with the terms of this 
Contract. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, the 
Parties agree as follows: 
 

 
1. SCOPE OF WORK, PLANS, PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS, AND PROJECT 
AUTHORIZATION: Contractor agrees to perform the Work on the Designated Project 
authorized by City in writing in a good and workmanlike manner according to the 
specifications and plans set forth herein and in accordance with Contractor’s proposal and 
pricing which is attached as Exhibit A.   

 
Contractor shall be responsible and agrees to perform all work according to the 
specifications, including removal of existing fencing at the Taylor Street and Rollins Street 
CSOs.  Contractor will install new woven wire fencing around the CSO basin along with 
a barbed wire strand at the top of each fence.  Contractor will install an access gate at 
the Rollins Street location and new gates at the Taylor Street location.  

  
 

2. AMOUNTS NOT TO EXCEED: Under no circumstances shall the cumulative 
amount of payment from City to Contractor for the Designated Project(s) 
authorized pursuant to this Contract exceed the amount appropriated for that 
purpose for Contractor’s completion of the Project in accordance with the 
requirements and terms and conditions set forth in this Contract. The agreed upon 
amount not to exceed for this contract is Sixteen Thousand One Hundred and Twenty-
Five Dollars and Five Cents ($16,125.05).  

 

92

#11.



3 

Payment of the Designated Project Amount shall be full compensation for all labor, 
services, materials, supplies, tools, equipment, supervision, management, and anything 
else necessary to complete the respective items in place, in full compliance with all 
requirements set forth in the Contract Documents.  All costs, permit fees, profit, overhead, 
expenses, taxes, and compensation of every kind related to the Work are included in the 
Designated Project Amount.  No labor, services, materials, supplies, tools, equipment, 
supervision, management, or anything else required by the Contract Documents for the 
proper and successful completion of the Work shall be paid for outside of or in addition to 
the Designated Project  Amount.  The Work set forth in the Designated Project Amount 
shall be itemized according to the Contractor’s Proposal and Pricing and the Contractor’s 
Estimated Price.  All Work not specifically set forth in Contractor’s Proposal and Pricing 
as a separate pay item is a subsidiary obligation of Contractor, and all costs, permit fees, 
profit, overhead, expenses, taxes and compensation of every kind in connection therewith 
are included in the Designated Project Amount which shall be based on and in accord 
with the pricing set forth in Contractor’s Proposal and Pricing. 
 
Any amounts claimed by Contractor in excess of the amounts not to exceed shall be 
presented to the City by way of a Change Order which must be accepted and approved 
by the governing body. 

 
 

3.  COMPLETION TIME: Contractor will start work promptly and no later than three (3) 
calendar weeks, after receipt of a Notice to Proceed.  Contractor shall complete the Work 
in timely fashion not to exceed sixty (60) days’ time.   It is expressly understood and 
agreed, by and between Contractor and City, that the contract time to complete the Work 
is a reasonable time to perform the work fully, entirely and in an acceptable manner to 
City, taking into consideration the average climatic and economic conditions and other 
factors prevailing in the locality of the Work. No extensions will be granted except in case 
of additional work requested by City under Change Order.  

 
 
4.   BONDING:  No bonding shall be required of the Contractor. 
 
5.   CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE: Contractor shall maintain, on a primary basis and at its 

sole expense, at all times during the life of this Contract the following insurance 
coverages, limits, including endorsements described herein. The requirements contained 
herein, as well as City’s review or acceptance of insurance maintained by Contractor is 
not intended to, and shall not in any manner limit or qualify the liabilities or obligations 
assumed by Contractor under this Contract. Coverage to be provided as follows by a 
carrier with A.M. Best minimum rating of A- VIII. 

 
a. Workers’ Compensation & Employers Liability. Contractor shall maintain Workers’ 

Compensation insurance coverage in accordance with Missouri Revised Statutes 
or provide evidence of monopolistic state coverage with the following limits: 
$500,000 policy limit for each accident, $500,000 policy limit for each disease 
claim, and $500,000 for each employee with a disease claim. 

 

93

#11.



4 

b. Commercial General Liability. Contractor shall maintain Commercial General 
Liability at a limit of not less than $2,000,000 Each Occurrence, $3,000,000 Annual 
Aggregate.  

 
c. Coverage shall not contain any endorsement(s) excluding nor limiting 

Product/Completed Operations, Contractual Liability or Cross Liability.  
 
d. Business Auto Liability.  Contractor shall maintain Business Automobile Liability at 

a limit not less than $2,000,000 Each Occurrence. Coverage shall include liability 
for Owned, Non-Owned & Hired automobiles. In the event Contractor does not own 
automobiles, Contractor agrees to maintain coverage for Hired & Non-Owned Auto 
Liability, which may be satisfied by way of endorsement to the Commercial General 
Liability policy or separate Business Auto Liability policy. 

 
e. Contractor may satisfy the minimum liability limits required for Commercial General 

Liability or Business Auto Liability under an Umbrella or Excess Liability policy. 
There is no minimum per occurrence limit of liability under the Umbrella or Excess 
Liability; however, the Annual Aggregate limit shall not be less than the highest 
“Each Occurrence” limit for either Commercial General Liability or Business Auto 
Liability. Contractor agrees to endorse City as an Additional Insured on the 
Umbrella or Excess Liability, unless the Certificate of Insurance state the Umbrella 
or Excess Liability provides coverage on a “Follow-Form” basis.  

 
f. The City of Moberly, its elected officials and employees are to be Additional 

Insureds with respect to the Designated Projects which are authorized pursuant to 
this Agreement. A certificate of insurance evidencing all coverage required is to be 
provided at least ten (10) days prior to the Effective Date of this Contract between 
Contractor and City. Contractor is required to maintain coverages as stated and 
required to notify City of a Carrier change or cancellation within two (2) business 
days. City reserves the right to request a copy of the policy.  Contractor’s insurance 
certificate shall be attached as Exhibit F.  Upon City’s request, Contractor shall 
provide the City with an insurance certificate for the Designated Project prior to 
commencing work on the Designated Project.   

 
g. The Parties hereto understand and agree that City is relying on, and does not 

waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Contract, any monetary limitations 
or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the State of Missouri, 
as from time to time amended, or otherwise available to City, or its elected officials 
or employees.  

 
h. Failure to maintain the required insurance in force may be cause for termination of 

this Contract. In the event Contractor fails to maintain and keep in force the 
required insurance or to obtain coverage from its subcontractors, City shall have 
the right to cancel and terminate this Contract without notice. 

 
i. The insurance required by the provisions of this article is required in the public 

interest and City does not assume any liability for acts of Contractor and/or their 
employees and/or their subcontractors in the performance of this Contract. 

 

94

#11.



5 

6.   HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT:  To the fullest extent not prohibited by law, Contractor 
shall indemnify and hold harmless the City of Moberly, its directors, officers, agents, and 
employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including but 
not limited to attorney’s fees) arising by reason of any act or failure to act, negligent or 
otherwise, of Contractor, of any subcontractor (meaning anyone, including but not limited 
to consultants having a contract with Contractor or a subcontractor for part of the 
services), of anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor or by any subcontractor, 
or of anyone for whose acts Contractor or its subcontractor may be liable, in connection 
with providing these services.  This provision does not, however, require Contractor to 
indemnify, hold harmless, or defend the City of Moberly from its own negligence. 

  
7.  PERMITS:  Contractor shall secure all necessary licenses and permits before beginning 

work, keep necessary records as required, and do all work in such manner as to comply 
with all ordinances and laws of the City, County, State, and Nation as apply to the work 
herein outlined.  

 
8.  PAYMENTS: For each Designated Project, Contractor will be allowed payment in 

accordance with the following schedule. 

a. Following completion of the Project (as certified by City) and not later than thirty 
(30) days after receipt of invoice City shall make complete payment to Contractor 
based upon contractors presentation of an invoice detailing the exact amount of 
footage of re-established ditches. 

 
9. EXTRA WORK AND CHANGES: If any extra work is to be done for which there is no 

quantity and price included in the Contract, or any change in the plans and specifications 
is deemed necessary by City, Contractor may issue to City a written change order or 
contract amendment directing that such extra work be done or that such change be made, 
and this Contract shall be modified accordingly following approval by the City’s governing 
body. Extra work shall be done in accordance with the specifications.  

 
10. DISCHARGE OF EMPLOYEES: Any employee of Contractor who is stationed at the site 

of the work and should prove to be quarrelsome, dishonest, incompetent or 
inexperienced, or should not work for the good of the job, shall, upon written notice from 
City, be removed by Contractor and replaced by an employee with proper qualifications. 

 
11.  ASSIGNMENT:  Contractor shall not assign any portion of this contract or project unless 

approved in writing by the City 
 
12. SUBCONTRACTING: No part of the Work covered by this Contract shall be sublet by 

Contractor without the prior written approval of City.   
 
13.  ACCIDENT PREVENTION: Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection 

of persons (including employees) and property.   
 

a. The safety provisions of applicable laws, and building and construction codes, shall 
be observed.  Machinery, equipment, and all hazards shall be guarded or 
eliminated in accordance with the safety provisions of the “Manual of Accident 
Prevention in Construction”, published by the Associated General Contractors of 

95

#11.



6 

America, to the extent that such provisions are not in contravention of applicable 
laws.  Current standards of the Occupational Safety and Health Act shall be 
applied. Contractor shall not commit or permit a public or private nuisance during 
this Project.  

 
b. Contractor shall take all necessary steps to protect his own workers, the utility 

personnel, and the public from unnecessary danger or hazard during the 
prosecution of the work on the Designated Project.  Danger signs, warning signs, 
flares, lanterns, railings, barriers, sheeting, shoring, etc. shall be erected to prevent 
accidents from construction, falling objects, rotating machinery, electric lines, and 
other conditions which might present unusual hazard. 

 
14. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY: The City of Moberly is an equal opportunity, affirmative action 

employer pursuant to federal, state and local law.  Contractor shall comply with federal, 
state and local laws related to Equal Opportunity.  Contractor shall not discriminate based 
on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, ancestry, marital status, disability, sexual 
orientation or gender identity, or any other protected category. 

 
15. DOMESTIC PURCHASING POLICY: Contractors are encouraged to select and use 

materials manufactured, assembled, or produced in the United States in the performance 
of this Contract whenever the quality and price are comparable with other goods. 

 
16. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor shall comply with all applicable 

provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act and the regulations implementing the 
Act, including those regulations governing employment practices. If this Contract involves 
Contractor providing services directly to the public, Contractor shall make the services, 
programs, and activities governed by this Contract accessible to persons with disabilities 
as required by the Americans with Disabilities Act and its implementing regulations.  If 
this Contract involves construction work, the Designated Project when completed shall 
comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act and the regulations 
implementing the Act.  Payment of funds under this Contract are conditional upon 
Contractor certifying to City in writing that it and the completed Designated Project 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act and 28 CFR Part 35. 

  
 
17.  MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP: All materials provided by Contractor shall be new       

materials of high quality which shall give long life and reliable operation.  All equipment 
shall be modern in design and shall not have been in prior service except as required by 
factory tests.  The workmanship shall be of high quality in every detail. 

 
 
 
18.  INTERFERENCE: All work scheduled by Contractor shall be planned with the consent of 

the City and shall not in any way interfere with any utility, highway, railroad, or private 
property unless consent is given by authorized representatives of City. 

 
19.  NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY:  No provision of this Contract is intended to nor shall 

it in any way inure to the benefit of any third party, so as to constitute any such person a 
third-party beneficiary under this Contract. 

96

#11.



7 

 
20.  TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:  In addition to any failure of Contractor to perform any 

provisions herein, Contractor will be in default for the following: If Contractor fails to begin 
the work within the time specified, or fails to perform the work with sufficient workmen or 
materials to ensure its prompt completion or performs the work unsuitably, or neglects or 
refuses to remove materials or perform anew such work as shall be rejected as defective 
and unsuitable, or discontinues the prosecution of the work, or from any other cause 
whatsoever does not carry on the work in an acceptable manner, or becomes insolvent 
or is adjudicated a bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency, or allows 
any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of ten (10) days, the City 
may give notice in writing by registered mail to Contractor of such delay, neglect, or 
default.  If within ten (10) days after such notice Contractor does not proceed to remedy 
to the satisfaction the City the fault specified in said notice, City shall have full power and 
authority, without impairing the obligation of Contract to take over the completion of the 
work; to appropriate or use any or all material and equipment on the ground that is suitable 
and acceptable; to enter into agreements with others; or to use other such methods as in 
its opinion may be required for the completion of Contract in an acceptable manner.  
Contractor shall be liable for all costs and expenses incurred by City in completing the 
work. 

 
City may, by written notice, terminate this Contract in whole or in part for failure of 
Contractor to perform any of the provisions thereof. In such event, Contractor shall be 
liable for damages, including the excess cost of procuring similar supplies or services; 
provided, that if (a) it is determined for any reason that Contractor was not in default or, 
(b) failure to perform is beyond Contractor’s or subcontractor’s control, fault or negligence, 
the termination shall be deemed to be a termination for convenience. In general, 
termination for default shall be effective ten (10) days from Contractor’s receipt of notice. 
In the event the good or services provided under the Contract are deemed to serve an 
emergency purpose, and the provision of those goods/services is somehow 
compromised, City reserves the right to issue an immediate, same day, termination notice 
and secure the goods/services elsewhere. 

 
21.  TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE: The performance of work under this Contract may 

be terminated by the City of Moberly in whole or in part, whenever City determines that 
such termination is in the best interest of the City of Moberly.  Any such termination will 
be affected by delivery to Contractor of a letter of termination specifying the extent to 
which performance of work under this Contract is terminated and the date upon which 
such termination is effective.  After receipt of a termination letter, Contractor shall: 

 
a. Stop work on this Contract on the date and to the extent specified in the letter. 
 
b. Place no further orders for materials, services or facilities except as may be 

necessary to complete any portions of the work under this Contract not terminated. 
 
c. Complete on schedule such part of the work as will not be terminated by 

termination letter.  
 

97

#11.



8 

22.  CONSTRUCTION SAFETY PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS: 
 

a.  Contractor shall require all on-site employees to complete the ten-hour safety 
training program required pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo, if they have not 
previously completed the program and have documentation of having done so. All 
employees working on the project are required to complete the program within sixty 
(60) days of beginning work on the Project.   

 
b. Any employee found on the worksite subject to this section without documentation 

of the successful completion of the course required under subsection (a) shall be 
afforded twenty (20) days to produce such documentation before being subject to 
removal from the project.   

 
c. Pursuant to Section 292.675 RSMo., Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to City 

two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500.00) plus one hundred dollars ($100.00) 
for each employee employed by Contractor or subcontractor, for each calendar 
day, or portion thereof, such employee is employed without the required training.  
The penalty shall not begin to accrue until the time periods in subsections (a.) and 
(b.) have elapsed.  City shall withhold and retain from the amount due Contractor 
under this Contract, all sums and amounts due and owing City as a result of any 
violation of this section. 

 
23. EMPLOYMENT OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS PROHIBITED: Contractor shall comply 

with Missouri Revised Statute Section 285.530 in that Contractor shall not knowingly 
employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 
within the state of Missouri.  

 
Contractor shall, by sworn affidavit and provision of documentation, affirm its enrollment 
and participation in a federal work authorization program with respect to the employees 
working in connection with the contracted services. Contractor shall also complete a Work 
Authorization Affidavit affirming that it does not knowingly employ any person who is an 
unauthorized alien in connection with the contracted services.  Contractor shall require 
all subcontractors to observe the requirements of this section and shall obtain a Work 
Authorization Affidavit from each subcontractor performing Work on the Designated 
Projects.   

 
24. NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES: In no event shall the language of this Contract constitute 

or be construed as a waiver or limitation of City’s rights or defenses with regard to 
applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections as provided by 
federal and state constitutions or laws. 

 
25. AMENDMENT:  No amendment, addition to, or modification of any provision hereof shall 

be binding upon the Parties, and neither Party shall be deemed to have waived any 
provision or any remedy available to it unless such amendment, addition, modification or 
waiver is in writing and signed by a duly authorized officer or representative of the 
applicable Party or Parties. 

 
26. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE:  This Contract shall be governed, interpreted, and 

enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Missouri and/or the laws of the United 

98

#11.



9 

States, as applicable.  The venue for all litigation arising out of, or relating to this Contract, 
shall be in Randolph County, Missouri, or the United States Western District of Missouri.  
The Parties hereto irrevocably agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of such courts 
in the State of Missouri.  The Parties agree to waive any defense of forum non 
conveniens. 

 
27. GENERAL LAWS:  Contractor shall perform all work to the complete satisfaction of City 

and in accordance with all federal, state, county, municipal, and other local laws, 
ordinances, and regulations applicable to said work.   

 
28.  NOTICES: 
 

a. The following persons are designated by the respective Parties to act on behalf of 
such Party and to receive all written notices and payment invoices: 

 

IF TO CITY: IF TO CONTRACTOR: 

City of Moberly 
101 West Reed Street 
Moberly, MO  65205-6015 
ATTN: Tom Sanders 

 

 

 

ATTN: click here and insert name of 
contact in text box 

With a Copy to:  

 

 

  
b. Any notice required by this Contract to be given in writing or that either City or 

Contractor wishes to give to the other in writing shall be signed by or on behalf of 
the Party giving notice. The notice shall be deemed to have been completed when 
sent by certified or registered mail to the other Party at the address set forth herein, 
or delivered in person to said Party or their authorized representative.   

 
c. Contractor’s designated representative shall be available to meet with City at any 

time during the performance of the Work and shall have full authority to act on 
Contractor’s behalf on any matter related to this Contract and/or the Work. 

 
29. ENTIRE CONTRACT: This Contract represents the entire and integrated Contract 

between the Parties relative to the Designated Projects authorized pursuant to this 
Contract.  All previous or contemporaneous contracts, representations, promises and 
conditions relating to Contractor’s services are superseded. 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 

  

99

#11.



10 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have hereunto set their hands and seals the day 
and year written below. 
 

CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 

    
By:         
  
 
Date:        

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:       
 Randall Thompson, City Counselor 
 
 
 
 
 (Seal)  

 
LUTE CUSTOM FENCING, LLC 
By:        
 
Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Date:         

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:       
 
Name:       
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

100

#11.



11 

 

 

101

#11.



12 

 

 

102

#11.



103

#11.



104

#11.



105

#11.



106

#11.



107

#11.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

  

Summary: Through the course of regular City operations, debts to various vendors and 

agencies are incurred. The majority are charged to the City through invoices, 

other debts are incurred through contractual arrangements for services, 

financing of purchases, and long-term debt. This resolution approves payment 

of two types of items; (1) those with due dates within the next two weeks, and 

(2) for payments that have been made for items with due dates that occurred 

since the previous appropriation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget : N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
    _     Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    _     Staff Report    _   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     

       Correspondence    X   Proposed Resolution   
    Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes    _    Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

108

#12.



109

#12.



110

#12.



111

#12.



112

#12.



113

#12.



114

#12.



115

#12.



116

#12.



117

#12.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:    

Department: City Manager 

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Department Head Monthly Reports 

  

Summary: Attached is Community Development Monthly Report/Public Works Monthly, 

Finance Department Monthly Report, Parks and Rec. Monthly Report, Police 

Department Monthly Report, Fire Department Monthly Report, Public Utility 

Monthly Report, Moberly Area Economic Development, Moberly Chamber of 

Commerce. 

  

These are for you to review on the activity that each Department has 

accomplished for the Month February. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Just for your review 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

118

#13.



119

#13.



120

#13.



121

#13.



122

#13.



123

#13.



124

#13.



125

#13.



126

#13.



127

#13.



Fund # Fund Name

Beginning Cash 

Balance Revenues Transfers In Expenditures Transfers Out Ending Cash Balance

100 General 2,482,610.16        816,813.01          -                    561,564.24         20,833.33         2,717,025.60               

102 Non-Resident Lodging Tax 206,668.38           5,401.89              -                    14,200.00           -                    197,870.27                  

105 Payroll 565,009.00           1,466.81              -                    11,167.79           -                    555,308.02                  

110 Solid Waste 777,722.27           108,177.30          -                    113,490.54         -                    772,409.03                  

114 Heritage Hills Golf Course -                        -                      3,910.04           3,910.04             -                    -                               

115 Parks and Recreation (1,101.83)              24,568.30            198,129.11       215,568.98         -                    6,026.60                      

116 Park Sales Tax 928,720.79           173,805.72          -                    -                      202,039.15       900,487.36                  

120 Airport (286,559.53)          20,126.43            -                    15,467.25           -                    (281,900.35)                 

125 Perpetual Care Cemetery Sales 10,459.23             (27.00)                 -                    -                      -                    10,432.23                    

126 Perpetual Care Cemetery Investment 536,429.69           1,419.77              -                    -                      -                    537,849.46                  

135 ARPA Grant Fund 2,647,696.78        6,873.64              -                    -                      -                    2,654,570.42               

137 Use Tax Trust 252,674.08           655.96                 -                    -                      -                    253,330.04                  

140 Veterans Memorial Flag Project 40,086.81             104.07                 -                    -                      -                    40,190.88                    

300 Utilities Collection -                        571,245.97          -                    32,349.50           538,896.47       -                               

301 Utilities Operation and Maintenance 7,803.90               -                      269,730.39       257,668.26         -                    19,866.03                    

302 Utilities Replacement 709,603.58           -                      4,125.00           (3,180.00)            -                    716,908.58                  

303 Utilities Operating Reserve 1,132,554.69        4,802.66              136,081.89       6,333.49             -                    1,267,105.75               

306 Utilities Consumer Security 209,547.88           320.33                 -                    -                      -                    209,868.21                  

307 Sugar Creek Lake Fund 62,942.44             388.40                 -                    -                      -                    63,330.84                    

314 Route JJ Sewer Extension Fund (349,382.04)          -                      -                    6,184.85             -                    (355,566.89)                 

350 EDA Grant Projects Fund (478,126.90)          -                      -                    38,444.20           -                    (516,571.10)                 

377 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service 1,223,364.25        3,175.96              42,772.34         38,124.15           -                    1,231,188.40               

378 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service 1,812,509.05        4,705.43              35,728.54         27,861.38           -                    1,825,081.64               

379 2004C Bond Debt Service 164,581.28           427.27                 29,859.58         26,465.87           -                    168,402.26                  

380 2008A Bonds Debt Service 115,767.99           300.54                 15,051.85         37,579.07           -                    93,541.31                    

381 ESP Projects Debt Service 108,802.94           282.46                 50,458.31         -                      -                    159,543.71                  

1,026,212.66        -                      -                    -                      -                    1,026,212.66               

5,746,181.72        585,649.02          583,807.90       467,830.77         538,896.47       5,908,911.40               

304 Capital Improvement Trust 736,992.77           130,010.33          -                    35,832.00           54,994.76         776,176.34                  

400 911 Emergency Telephone (4,894.88)              35,625.82            20,833.33         52,279.51           -                    (715.24)                        

406 Inmate Security Fund 15,397.51             99.97                   -                    -                      -                    15,497.48                    

408 Police Forfeiture Fund -                        -                      -                    -                      -                    -                               

600 Transportation Trust 2,276,627.95        133,029.12          -                    8,909.73             -                    2,400,747.34               

601 Street Improvement 606,958.16           40,988.40            -                    31,137.33           -                    616,809.23                  

900 MODAG Grant/Loan 22,136.29             57.47                   -                    -                      -                    22,193.76                    

901 Misc. Project Residuals 152,432.84           395.73                 -                    -                      -                    152,828.57                  

903 Ameren MO Solar Rebates 352,144.13           -                      -                    1,719.49             -                    350,424.64                  

   Escrow

   Total CWWSS (funds 300-381 + escrow)

City of Moberly Cash Balance Report -  February 2023

Page 1 of 2
128

#13.



Fund # Fund Name

Beginning Cash 

Balance Revenues Transfers In Expenditures Transfers Out Ending Cash Balance

City of Moberly Cash Balance Report -  February 2023

904 Hometown Strong Fund 100,000.00           -                      -                    -                      -                    100,000.00                  

905 Retail Consulting Fund 16,858.58             43.77                   -                    -                      -                    16,902.35                    

906 Solar Systems Settlement Fund 774,165.71           -                      -                    3,910.33             -                    770,255.38                  

908 Railcar Preservation Fund 652.82                  1.69                     -                    -                      -                    654.51                         

909 Lucille Manor CDBG Reimbursement 270,483.84           4,506.40              -                    -                      -                    274,990.24                  

911 Downtown CID Sales Tax 163,719.06           8,684.75              -                    318.46                -                    172,085.35                  

912 Downtown CID Property Tax 379,798.37           24,860.87            -                    16,219.46           1,733.84           386,705.94                  

914 Downtown NID Cost of Issuance -                        -                      -                    -                      -                    -                               

915 Downtown NID Street Projects 137,005.59           -                      -                    -                      -                    137,005.59                  

916 Downtown NID Sewer Projects 1,516,994.41        -                      -                    -                      -                    1,516,994.41               

918 Downtown NID Debt Service 96,753.32             251.18                 11,817.17         -                      -                    108,821.67                  

995 Health Trust 146,463.99           289,405.37          -                    123,434.73         -                    312,434.63                  

995 Investments -                        -                      -                    -                      -                    -                               

146,463.99           289,405.37          -                    123,434.73         -                    312,434.63                  

21,667,288.01     2,412,995.79      818,497.55      1,676,960.65     818,497.55      22,403,323.15             Total Cash

   Total Health Trust

Page 2 of 2
129

#13.



66.67%

% of % of

Fund # Fund Name Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget

100 General 816,813.01 6,468,995.79 9,431,789.14 68.59% 611,946.40 5,628,424.88 9,431,789.14 59.68%

102 Non-Resident Lodging Tax 5,401.89 77,461.56 100,900.00 76.77% 14,200.00 60,300.00 100,000.00 60.30%

105 Payroll 1,466.81 9,089.37 0.00 0.00% 1,100.63 -3,543.19 0.00 0.00%

110 Solid Waste 108,177.30 868,027.91 1,093,900.00 79.35% 91,921.42 836,971.22 1,073,840.75 77.94%

114 Heritage Hills Golf Course 3,910.04 275,724.28 246,134.01 112.02% 3,910.04 275,724.28 246,134.01 112.02%

115 Parks and Recreation 222,697.41 2,396,549.64 3,344,585.83 71.65% 222,697.41 2,396,549.64 3,344,585.83 71.65%

116 Park Sales Tax 173,805.72 1,604,525.22 1,628,000.00 98.56% 202,039.15 1,849,912.88 2,415,969.84 76.57%

120 Airport 20,126.43 274,281.10 635,557.18 43.16% 15,762.44 499,541.66 635,557.18 78.60%

125 Perpetual Care Cemetery Sales -27.00 9,723.00 25,000.00 38.89% 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00%

126 Perpetual Care Cemetery Investment 1,419.77 8,849.46 28,000.00 31.61% 0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00%

135 ARPA Grant Fund 6,873.64 1,476,002.28 1,374,405.28 107.39% 0.00 0.00 300,000.00 0.00%

140 Veterans Memorial Flag Project 104.07 1,650.21 3,300.00 50.01% 0.00 321.64 3,000.00 10.72%

300 Utilities Collection 571,245.97 4,818,057.53 7,814,333.91 61.66% 574,258.03 4,837,198.56 7,814,333.91 61.90%

301 Utilities Operation and Maintenance 269,730.39 3,211,309.14 5,661,664.64 56.72% 269,477.72 3,211,309.14 5,661,664.64 56.72%

302 Utilities Replacement 4,125.00 33,000.00 49,500.00 66.67% -3,180.00 27,130.00 0.00 0.00%

303 Utilities Operating Reserve 140,884.55 321,183.19 175,568.75 182.94% 6,333.49 451,436.65 437,535.82 103.18%

304 Capital Improvement Trust 130,010.33 1,009,041.58 1,422,000.00 70.96% 90,826.76 602,271.15 814,206.41 73.97%

307 Sugar Creek Lake Fund 388.40 2,389.14 2,300.00 103.88% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

314 Route JJ Sewer Extension Fund 0.00 0.00 1,464,148.00 0.00% 8,387.35 132,542.26 1,464,148.00 9.05%

350 EDA Grant Projects Fund 0.00 0.00 6,128,287.00 0.00% 38,444.20 94,441.43 6,128,287.00 1.54%

377 2004B SRF Bonds Debt Service 45,948.30 362,057.81 519,868.13 69.64% 38,124.15 311,176.30 907,243.75 34.30%

378 2006A SRF Bonds Debt Service 40,433.97 315,141.31 438,342.50 71.89% 27,861.38 231,754.08 836,175.00 27.72%

379 2004C Bond Debt Service 30,286.85 241,495.87 358,795.00 67.31% 26,465.87 217,894.57 326,650.00 66.71%

380 2008A Bonds Debt Service 15,352.39 122,093.09 180,922.16 67.48% 37,579.07 119,785.49 164,911.05 72.64%

381 ESP Projects Debt Service 50,740.77 405,925.04 606,199.74 66.96% 0.00 406,022.55 551,363.40 73.64%

400 911 Emergency Telephone 56,459.15 358,110.94 532,480.00 67.25% 54,607.14 435,640.02 646,139.37 67.42%

406 Inmate Security Fund 99.97 626.21 810.00 77.31% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

600 Transportation Trust 133,029.12 1,051,157.33 1,436,700.00 73.16% 8,909.73 875,422.61 1,279,059.00 68.44%

601 Street Improvement 40,988.40 698,285.85 500,000.00 139.66% 31,630.71 159,560.46 675,275.00 23.63%

903 Ameren MO Solar Rebates 0.00 11,827.50 0.00 0.00% 1,719.49 13,755.92 0.00 0.00%

904 Hometown Strong Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

City of Moberly Budget Comparison Report - February 2023

Percentage of Year Completed

Revenues Expenditures

Page 1 of 2
130

#13.



66.67%

% of % of

Fund # Fund Name Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget Month Year to Date Total Budget Budget

City of Moberly Budget Comparison Report - February 2023

Percentage of Year Completed

Revenues Expenditures

905 Retail Consulting Fund 43.77 5,254.71 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

906 Solar Systems Settlement Fund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 3,910.33 31,282.64 0.00 0.00%

908 Railcar Preservation Fund 1.69 10.71 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

909 Lucille Manor CDBG Reimbursement 4,506.40 21,463.16 24,325.00 88.23% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

911 Downtown CID Sales Tax 8,684.75 70,880.06 101,680.00 69.71% 318.46 25,274.06 101,300.00 24.95%

912 Downtown CID Property Tax 24,860.87 233,603.86 215,000.00 108.65% 17,953.30 156,369.11 202,616.08 77.18%

914 Downtown NID Cost of Issuance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

915 Downtown NID Street Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

916 Downtown NID Sewer Projects 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%

918 Downtown NID Debt Service 12,068.35 95,836.98 143,006.04 67.02% 0.00 64,457.30 128,914.60 50.00%

995 Health Trust 289,405.37 1,360,944.19 0.00 0.00% 123,434.73 1,410,820.74 0.00 0.00%

3,230,063.85 28,220,575.02 45,687,502.31 61.77% 2,520,639.40 25,359,748.05 45,718,699.78 55.47%TOTALS

Page 2 of 2
131

#13.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 7.97% $199,862 -17.31% -17.31% 9.09% $250,141 25.16% 25.16% 8.44% $247,325 -1.13% -1.13% 10.73% $245,365 -0.79% -0.79%

August 8.43% $211,324 12.94% -4.11% 7.66% $210,787 -0.25% 12.10% 7.49% $219,697 4.23% 1.32% 11.32% $258,863 17.83% 7.97%

September 9.47% $237,294 -3.45% -3.87% 9.64% $265,191 11.76% 11.97% 9.54% $279,648 5.45% 2.83% 11.93% $272,892 -2.42% 4.08%

October 7.95% $199,259 7.64% -1.39% 8.03% $221,103 10.96% 11.73% 8.17% $239,568 8.35% 4.12% 10.96% $250,666 4.63% 4.21%

November 6.90% $172,873 6.55% -0.13% 6.63% $182,491 5.56% 10.69% 7.77% $227,855 24.86% 7.47% 10.12% $231,444 1.58% 3.72%

December 8.55% $214,218 -3.25% -0.68% 8.59% $236,514 10.41% 10.64% 8.90% $260,966 10.34% 7.97% 11.69% $267,405 2.47% 3.50%

January 8.46% $212,117 2.23% -0.27% 7.68% $211,290 -0.39% 9.02% 7.14% $209,234 -0.97% 6.77% 11.02% $252,078 20.48% 5.61%

February 8.70% $217,948 2.24% 0.05% 7.90% $217,419 -0.24% 7.81% 9.30% $272,759 25.45% 9.03% 11.39% $260,612 -4.45% 4.20%

March 8.29% $207,716 2.51% 0.32% 8.57% $235,865 13.55% 8.45% 8.51% $249,432 5.75% 8.65% 10.85% $248,240 -0.48% 3.67%

April 7.98% $200,097 -4.84% -0.20% 7.09% $195,208 -2.44% 7.40% 7.90% $231,630 18.66% 9.53% 0.00%

May 7.73% $193,621 1.22% -0.08% 8.00% $220,208 13.73% 7.94% 7.08% $207,603 -5.72% 8.16% 0.00%

June 9.57% $239,953 10.55% 0.85% 11.12% $305,934 27.50% 9.81% 9.75% $285,942 -6.53% 6.52% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $2,506,282 100.00% $2,752,151 100.00% $2,931,659 100.00% $2,287,564

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One Percent (1%) General Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
1

9
9

,8
6

2

$
2

1
1

,3
2

4

$
2

3
7

,2
9

4

$
1

5
9

,9
6

0

$
1

7
2

,8
7

3

$
2

1
4

,2
1

8

$
2

1
2

,1
1

7

$
2

1
7

,9
4

8

$
2

0
7

,7
1

6

$
2

0
0

,0
9

7

$
1

9
3

,6
2

1

$
2

3
9

,9
5

3

$
2

5
0

,1
4

1

$
2

1
0

,7
8

7

$
2

6
5

,1
9

1

$
2

2
1

,1
0

3

$
1

8
2

,4
9

1

$
2

3
6

,5
1

4

$
2

1
1

,2
9

0

$
2

1
7

,4
1

9

$
2

3
5

,8
6

5

$
1

9
5

,2
0

8

$
2

2
0

,2
0

8

$
3

0
5

,9
3

4

$
2

4
7

,3
2

5

$
2

1
9

,6
9

7 $
2

7
9

,6
4

8

$
2

3
9

,5
6

8

$
2

2
7

,8
5

5

$
2

6
0

,9
6

6

$
2

0
9

,2
3

4 $
2

7
2

,7
5

9

$
2

4
9

,4
3

2

$
2

3
1

,6
3

0

$
2

0
7

,6
0

3

$
2

8
5

,9
4

2

$
2

4
5

,3
6

5

$
2

5
8

,8
6

3

$
2

7
2

,8
9

2

$
2

5
0

,6
6

6

$
2

3
1

,4
4

4

$
2

6
7

,4
0

5

$
2

5
2

,0
7

8

$
2

6
0

,6
1

2

$
2

4
8

,2
4

0

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

180,000

200,000

220,000

240,000

260,000

280,000

300,000

320,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

132

#13.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.11% $96,995 -16.54% -16.54% 9.23% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 8.54% $119,791 -1.56% -1.56% 10.79% $118,528 -1.05% -1.05%

August 8.47% $101,403 14.20% -3.23% 7.73% $102,013 0.60% 12.75% 7.63% $107,096 4.98% 1.42% 11.46% $125,805 17.47% 7.69%

September 9.53% $113,985 -2.73% -3.04% 9.67% $127,495 11.85% 12.42% 9.60% $134,704 5.65% 2.96% 12.15% $133,437 -0.94% 4.47%

October 7.96% $95,207 8.15% -0.64% 7.99% $105,403 10.71% 12.02% 8.12% $113,921 8.08% 4.14% 10.87% $119,394 4.80% 4.55%

November 6.85% $81,925 7.43% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.51% 11.10% 7.75% $108,728 24.61% 7.43% 10.04% $110,199 1.35% 3.96%

December 8.65% $103,534 17.42% 3.20% 8.70% $114,709 10.79% 11.05% 8.91% $125,041 9.01% 7.70% 11.69% $128,399 2.69% 3.73%

January 8.53% $102,043 -15.02% 0.05% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.28% 7.40% $103,883 2.85% 7.06% 10.80% $118,615 14.18% 5.07%

February 8.64% $103,390 3.00% 0.42% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 9.15% $128,441 23.75% 9.06% 11.56% $126,970 -1.14% 4.22%

March 8.21% $98,246 3.21% 0.72% 8.44% $111,392 13.38% 8.70% 8.33% $116,931 4.97% 8.59% 10.63% $116,712 -0.19% 3.73%

April 7.83% $93,739 -4.21% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.61% 7.73% $108,526 19.18% 9.50% 0.00%

May 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.34% 8.21% $108,243 19.14% 8.58% 6.95% $97,513 -9.91% 7.71% 0.00%

June 9.63% $115,289 9.85% 1.18% 11.00% $145,068 25.83% 10.24% 9.88% $138,569 -4.48% 6.37% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $1,196,607 100.00% $1,319,125 100.00% $1,403,145 100.00% $1,098,060

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Parks Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,4
0

3

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
7

$
8

1
,9

2
5

$
1

0
3

,5
3

4

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,2

4
6

$
9

3
,7

3
9

$
9

0
,8

5
1 $
1

1
5

,2
8

9

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
0

3

$
8

7
,2

5
6 $
1

1
4

,7
0

9

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,3
9

2

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3

$
1

4
5

,0
6

8

$
1

1
9

,7
9

1

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6 $
1

3
4

,7
0

4

$
1

1
3

,9
2

1

$
1

0
8

,7
2

8

$
1

2
5

,0
4

1

$
1

0
3

,8
8

3

$
1

2
8

,4
4

1

$
1

1
6

,9
3

1

$
1

0
8

,5
2

6

$
9

7
,5

1
3

$
1

3
8

,5
6

9

$
1

1
8

,5
2

8

$
1

2
5

,8
0

5

$
1

3
3

,4
3

7

$
1

1
9

,3
9

4

$
1

1
0

,1
9

9

$
1

2
8

,3
9

9

$
1

1
8

,6
1

5

$
1

2
6

,9
7

0

$
1

1
6

,7
1

2

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

133

#13.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.11% $96,995 -16.54% -16.54% 9.23% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 8.54% $119,791 -1.56% -1.56% 10.79% $118,528 -1.05% -1.05%

August 8.47% $101,403 14.20% -3.23% 7.73% $102,013 0.60% 12.75% 7.63% $107,096 4.98% 1.42% 11.46% $125,805 17.47% 7.69%

September 9.53% $113,985 -2.73% -3.04% 9.67% $127,495 11.85% 12.42% 9.60% $134,704 5.65% 2.96% 12.15% $133,437 -0.94% 4.47%

October 7.96% $95,207 8.15% -0.64% 7.99% $105,403 10.71% 12.02% 8.12% $113,921 8.08% 4.14% 10.87% $119,394 4.80% 4.55%

November 6.85% $81,925 7.43% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.51% 11.10% 7.73% $108,460 24.30% 7.38% 10.04% $110,199 1.60% 4.01%

December 8.65% $103,535 -4.43% -0.30% 8.70% $114,709 10.79% 11.05% 8.91% $125,040 9.01% 7.66% 11.69% $128,399 2.69% 3.77%

January 8.53% $102,043 1.96% 0.03% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.28% 7.41% $103,883 2.85% 7.02% 10.80% $118,615 14.18% 5.10%

February 8.64% $103,390 3.04% 0.41% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 9.16% $128,441 23.75% 9.03% 11.56% $126,970 -1.14% 4.25%

March 8.21% $98,246 3.21% 0.71% 8.44% $111,392 13.38% 8.70% 8.34% $116,931 4.97% 8.57% 10.63% $116,712 -0.19% 3.76%

April 7.83% $93,739 -4.17% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.61% 7.74% $108,526 19.18% 9.47% 0.00%

May 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.33% 8.21% $108,243 19.14% 8.58% 6.95% $97,513 -9.91% 7.69% 0.00%

June 9.63% $115,289 9.85% 1.18% 11.00% $145,068 25.83% 10.24% 9.88% $138,569 -4.48% 6.35% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $1,196,609 100.00% $1,319,126 100.00% $1,402,876 100.00% $1,098,060

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Capital Improvement Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,4
0

3

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
7

$
8

1
,9

2
5

$
1

0
3

,5
3

5

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,2

4
6

$
9

3
,7

3
9

$
9

0
,8

5
1

$
1

1
5

,2
8

9

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
0

3

$
8

7
,2

5
6

$
1

1
4

,7
0

9

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,3
9

2

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3 $
1

4
5

,0
6

8

$
1

1
9

,7
9

1

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6

$
1

3
4

,7
0

4

$
1

1
3

,9
2

1

$
1

0
8

,4
6

0

$
1

2
5

,0
4

0

$
1

0
3

,8
8

3

$
1

2
8

,4
4

1

$
1

1
6

,9
3

1

$
1

0
8

,5
2

6

$
9

7
,5

1
3

$
1

3
8

,5
6

9

$
1

1
8

,5
2

8

$
1

2
5

,8
0

5

$
1

3
3

,4
3

7

$
1

1
9

,3
9

4

$
1

1
0

,1
9

9

$
1

2
8

,3
9

9

$
1

1
8

,6
1

5

$
1

2
6

,9
7

0

$
1

1
6

,7
1

2

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

134

#13.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.10% $96,995 -16.56% -16.56% 9.22% $121,689 25.46% 25.46% 8.54% $119,797 -1.55% -1.55% 10.79% $118,528 -1.06% -1.06%

August 8.48% $101,512 14.32% -3.19% 7.73% $102,013 0.49% 12.69% 7.63% $107,096 4.98% 1.43% 11.45% $125,805 17.47% 7.69%

September 9.52% $113,985 -2.80% -3.05% 9.66% $127,495 11.85% 12.39% 9.60% $134,741 5.68% 2.97% 12.16% $133,616 -0.83% 4.51%

October 7.95% $95,208 8.16% -0.64% 7.99% $105,470 10.78% 12.01% 8.12% $113,924 8.02% 4.14% 10.87% $119,394 4.80% 4.58%

November 6.84% $81,932 7.44% 0.62% 6.61% $87,256 6.50% 11.09% 7.73% $108,460 24.30% 7.37% 10.03% $110,199 1.60% 4.03%

December 8.65% $103,535 -4.43% -0.30% 8.70% $114,833 10.91% 11.06% 8.92% $125,157 8.99% 7.65% 11.72% $128,770 2.89% 3.83%

January 8.52% $102,043 1.82% 0.01% 7.66% $101,008 -1.01% 9.29% 7.40% $103,883 2.85% 7.01% 10.80% $118,615 14.18% 5.15%

February 8.64% $103,390 3.04% 0.39% 7.87% $103,792 0.39% 8.13% 9.15% $128,441 23.75% 9.03% 11.57% $127,117 -1.03% 4.31%

March 8.23% $98,515 3.37% 0.71% 8.45% $111,437 13.12% 8.68% 8.34% $117,026 5.02% 8.57% 10.62% $116,712 -0.27% 3.80%

April 7.83% $93,736 -4.18% 0.23% 6.90% $91,057 -2.86% 7.59% 7.73% $108,526 19.18% 9.47% 0.00%

May 7.59% $90,851 1.52% 0.33% 8.20% $108,243 19.14% 8.56% 6.96% $97,642 -9.79% 7.70% 0.00%

June 9.64% $115,360 9.87% 1.18% 11.00% $145,123 25.80% 10.22% 9.87% $138,569 -4.52% 6.35% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $1,197,062 100.00% $1,319,415 100.00% $1,403,262 100.00% $1,098,757

Prior year comparisonPrior year comparisonPrior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One-Half Percent (1/2%) Transportation Trust Fund Sales Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
9

6
,9

9
5

$
1

0
1

,5
1

2

$
1

1
3

,9
8

5

$
9

5
,2

0
8

$
8

1
,9

3
2

$
1

0
3

,5
3

5

$
1

0
2

,0
4

3

$
1

0
3

,3
9

0

$
9

8
,5

1
5

$
9

3
,7

3
6

$
9

0
,8

5
1

$
1

1
5

,3
6

0

$
1

2
1

,6
8

9

$
1

0
2

,0
1

3

$
1

2
7

,4
9

5

$
1

0
5

,4
7

0

$
8

7
,2

5
6

$
1

1
4

,8
3

3

$
1

0
1

,0
0

8

$
1

0
3

,7
9

2

$
1

1
1

,4
3

7

$
9

1
,0

5
7

$
1

0
8

,2
4

3 $
1

4
5

,1
2

3

$
1

1
9

,7
9

7

$
1

0
7

,0
9

6

$
1

3
4

,7
4

1

$
1

1
3

,9
2

4

$
1

0
8

,4
6

0

$
1

2
5

,1
5

7

$
1

0
3

,8
8

3

$
1

2
8

,4
4

1

$
1

1
7

,0
2

6

$
1

0
8

,5
2

6

$
9

7
,6

4
2

$
1

3
8

,5
6

9

$
1

1
8

,5
2

8

$
1

2
5

,8
0

5

$
1

3
3

,6
1

6

$
1

1
9

,3
9

4

$
1

1
0

,1
9

9

$
1

2
8

,7
7

0

$
1

1
8

,6
1

5

$
1

2
7

,1
1

7

$
1

1
6

,7
1

2

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

120,000

130,000

140,000

150,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

2022-2023

135

#13.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 8.54% $50,367 8.33% 8.33% 7.04% $46,392 -7.89% -7.89% 4.84% $37,521 -19.12% -19.12% 7.40% $56,825 51.45% 51.45%

August 7.45% $43,915 -15.49% -4.24% 9.29% $61,192 39.34% 14.11% 9.16% $70,945 15.94% 0.82% 11.78% $90,493 27.55% 35.82%

September 8.95% $52,752 90.99% 16.62% 7.23% $47,622 -9.73% 5.56% 6.61% $51,208 7.53% 2.88% 9.94% $76,377 49.15% 40.10%

October 4.02% $23,669 -14.91% 10.92% 7.96% $52,453 121.61% 21.65% 6.20% $48,029 -8.44% 0.02% 7.44% $57,175 19.04% 35.23%

November 6.93% $40,852 -25.03% 1.52% 8.86% $58,373 42.89% 25.75% 8.79% $68,063 16.60% 3.66% 8.92% $68,520 0.67% 26.70%

December 8.52% $50,213 26.92% 5.57% 7.26% $47,833 -4.74% 19.90% 9.04% $69,977 46.30% 10.16% 10.57% $81,180 16.01% 24.54%

January 4.56% $26,900 -41.60% -1.82% 6.31% $41,573 54.55% 23.13% 7.31% $56,625 36.21% 13.20% 7.01% $53,856 -4.89% 20.39%

February 8.59% $50,625 -5.09% -2.32% 12.03% $79,275 56.59% 28.12% 13.47% $104,356 31.64% 16.56% 28.91% $222,113 112.84% 39.43%

March 8.04% $47,395 -19.65% -4.84% 9.99% $65,840 38.92% 29.45% 8.18% $63,354 -3.78% 13.89% 8.03% $61,723 -2.57% 34.76%

April 9.09% $53,605 47.24% -0.55% 8.34% $54,952 2.51% 26.17% 8.25% $63,896 16.28% 14.13% 0.00%

May 12.93% $76,249 139.75% 8.85% 7.24% $47,731 -37.40% 16.78% 9.73% $75,387 57.94% 17.59% 0.00%

June 12.37% $72,946 46.93% 12.46% 8.44% $55,587 -23.80% 11.76% 8.41% $65,115 17.14% 17.55% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $589,488 100.00% $658,823 100.00% $774,475 100.00% $768,263

Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

Two & One-Half Percent (2-1/2%) Use Tax Analysis

2019 - 2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
5

0
,3

6
7

$
4

3
,9

1
5

$
5

2
,7

5
2

$
2

3
,6

6
9

$
4

0
,8

5
2

$
5

0
,2

1
3

$
2

6
,9

0
0

$
5

0
,6

2
5

$
4

7
,3

9
5

$
5

3
,6

0
5

$
7

6
,2

4
9

$
7

2
,9

4
6

$
4

6
,3

9
2

$
6

1
,1

9
2

$
4

7
,6

2
2

$
5

2
,4

5
3

$
5

8
,3

7
3

$
4

7
,8

3
3

$
4

1
,5

7
3

$
7

9
,2

7
5

$
6

5
,8

4
0

$
5

4
,9

5
2

$
4

7
,7

3
1

$
5

5
,5

8
7

$
3

7
,5

2
1

$
7

0
,9

4
5

$
5

1
,2

0
8

$
4

8
,0

2
9

$
6

8
,0

6
3

$
6

9
,9

7
7

$
5

6
,6

2
5 $
1

0
4

,3
5

6

$
6

3
,3

5
4

$
6

3
,8

9
6

$
7

5
,3

8
7

$
6

5
,1

1
5

$
5

6
,8

2
5

$
9

0
,4

9
3

$
7

6
,3

7
7

$
5

7
,1

7
5

$
6

8
,5

2
0

$
8

1
,1

8
0

$
5

3
,8

5
6

$
2

2
2

,1
1

3

$
6

1
,7

2
3

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a
rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019 -
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

136

#13.



% of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD % of Monthly YTD

total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change total Amount Change Change

July 7.16% $3,885 -22.25% -22.25% 5.96% $3,526 -9.24% -9.24% 6.64% $6,772 92.03% 92.03% 12.42% $9,917 46.46% 46.46%

August 11.67% $6,335 110.82% 27.72% 9.16% $5,425 -14.37% -12.42% 6.83% $6,967 28.42% 53.48% 10.92% $8,715 25.09% 35.62%

September 10.70% $5,807 59.53% 37.67% 10.13% $5,999 3.32% -6.72% 7.42% $7,565 26.09% 42.49% 11.36% $9,071 19.91% 30.04%

October 6.39% $3,466 -4.97% 27.50% 6.35% $3,757 8.39% -4.03% 8.05% $8,211 118.56% 57.76% 8.82% $7,043 -14.22% 17.73%

November 5.75% $3,118 -4.21% 21.93% 5.38% $3,184 2.09% -3.19% 9.76% $9,956 212.74% 80.30% 10.78% $8,604 -13.58% 9.83%

December 11.83% $6,421 65.55% 29.48% 10.07% $5,963 -7.14% -4.06% 8.57% $8,738 46.55% 73.08% 11.97% $9,552 9.32% 9.74%

January 7.10% $3,854 0.40% 25.23% 7.25% $4,292 11.36% -2.25% 9.98% $10,185 137.32% 81.65% 9.04% $7,220 -29.11% 2.96%

February 7.26% $3,938 -34.19% 14.20% 8.06% $4,771 21.14% 0.25% 7.99% $8,146 70.75% 80.24% 10.35% $8,260 1.39% 2.77%

March 9.75% $5,293 30.90% 16.06% 7.74% $4,583 -13.42% -1.47% 9.47% $9,655 110.68% 83.61% 14.34% $11,452 18.62% 4.78%

April 6.98% $3,787 20.74% 16.44% 11.44% $6,772 78.83% 5.15% 7.65% $7,802 15.21% 74.01% 0.00%

May 8.50% $4,615 43.88% 18.50% 6.51% $3,853 -16.50% 3.18% 5.51% $5,625 45.98% 71.94% 0.00%

June 6.93% $3,761 -9.77% 15.98% 11.95% $7,075 88.10% 9.06% 12.14% $12,385 75.04% 72.31% 0.00%

Total 100.00% $54,280 100.00% $59,199 100.00% $102,005 100.00% $79,834

Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison Prior year comparison

City of Moberly

One Percent (1%) Downtown Community Improvement District Sales & Use Tax Analysis

2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

$
3

,8
8

5

$
6

,3
3

5

$
5

,8
0

7

$
3

,4
6

6

$
3

,1
1

8

$
6

,4
2

1

$
3

,8
5

4

$
3

,9
3

8

$
5

,2
9

3

$
3

,7
8

7

$
4

,6
1

5

$
3

,7
6

1

$
3

,5
2

6
 

$
5

,4
2

5
 

$
5

,9
9

9
 

$
3

,7
5

7
 

$
3

,1
8

4
 

$
5

,9
6

3
 

$
4

,2
9

2
 

$
4

,7
7

1
 

$
4

,5
8

3
 $
6

,7
7

2
 

$
3

,8
5

3
 

$
7

,0
7

5
 

$
6

,7
7

2
 

$
6

,9
6

7
 

$
7

,5
6

5
 

$
8

,2
1

1
 

$
9

,9
5

6
 

$
8

,7
3

8
 

$
1

0
,1

8
5

 

$
8

,1
4

6
 

$
9

,6
5

5
 

$
7

,8
0

2
 

$
5

,6
2

5
 

$
1

2
,3

8
5

 

$
9

,9
1

7
 

$
8

,7
1

5
 

$
9

,0
7

1
 

$
7

,0
4

3
 

$
8

,6
0

4
 

$
9

,5
5

2
 

$
7

,2
2

0
 

$
8

,2
6

0
 

$
1

1
,4

5
2

 

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

July August September October November December January February March April May June

D
o

ll
a

rs

Month

Annual Comparison by Month

2019-
2020

2020-
2021

2021-
2022

2022-
2023

137

#13.



Income July 2022-Feb. 2023 July 2021-Feb. 2022 $ Change % Change

4900 Miscellaneous 44,480.03 15,500.86 28,979.17 186.95%

4901 Interest Income 4,826.43 129.40 4,697.03 3629.85%

4950 Employer Contributions 863,430.94 872,647.32 (9,216.38) -1.06%

4951 Employee Contributions 173,903.12 219,071.48 (45,168.36) -20.62%

4952 Employee Cobra Payments 5,540.34 6,910.32 (1,369.98) -19.83%

4953 Reinsurance Refunds 264,013.33 49,061.67 214,951.66 438.13%

4954 Employee Buy-up Premiums 4,750.00 5,275.00 (525.00) -9.95%

1,360,944.19 1,168,596.05 192,348.14 16.46%

5406 Contracted Services 2,311.00 1,244.00 1,067.00 85.77%

5806 Miscellaneous 54.00 312.00 (258.00) -82.69%

5817 Bank Fees 976.04 709.74 266.30 37.52%

5850 Health Claims Paid 905,339.71 785,030.27 120,309.44 15.33%

5851 Pharmaceuticals 135,800.69 160,459.65 (24,658.96) -15.37%

5852 Reinsurance Premiums 236,673.82 244,748.86 (8,075.04) -3.30%

5853 Life Insurance Premiums 24,129.61 16,714.05 7,415.56 44.37%

5854 Medical Claims Admin Fees 50,601.83 51,172.06 (570.23) -1.11%

5855 Dental Claims Admin Fees 3,075.30 3,546.35 (471.05) -13.28%

5856 Air Ambulance Memberships 5,606.00 7,018.00 (1,412.00) -20.12%

5857 Dental Claims Paid 45,587.74 44,094.90 1,492.84 3.39%

5858 HSA Account Fees 665.00 530.00 135.00 25.47%

1,410,820.74 1,315,579.88 95,240.86 7.24%

Net Income (Loss) (49,876.55) (146,983.83) 97,107.28 -66.07%

Total Expenditures

Total Income

City of Moberly Health Plan Trust

Comparative Profit & Loss Statement - February 2023

Expenditures

138

#13.



February 28, 2023 February 28, 2022 $ Change % Change

1000 Cash 312,434.63 372,877.42 (60,442.79) -16.21%

312,434.63 372,877.42 (60,442.79) -16.21%

1300 Investments 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

0.00 0.00 0.00 100.00%

312,434.63 372,877.42 (60,442.79) -16.21%

3000 Unreserved Fund Balance 362,311.18 519,861.25 (157,550.07) -30.31%

(49,876.55) (146,983.83) 97,107.28 -66.07%

312,434.63 372,877.42 (60,442.79) -16.21%

312,434.63 372,877.42 (60,442.79) -16.21%

    Net Income (Loss)

  Equity

  Total Equity

  TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

City of Moberly Health Plan Trust

Comparative Balance Sheet - February 28, 2023

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

  Current Assets

  Total Current Assets

  Other Assets

  Total Other Assets

ASSETS

139

#13.



140

#13.



                     City of 
                                                

                                                                                                                               

                                   

 
Police Department                                                                                                300 N Clark Street                 

Troy Link                                                                                                                 Moberly, MO  65270 

Chief of Police                                                                                                         Phone:      660-263-0346 

264th  Session FBI Academy                                                                                   Fax:          660-263-8540 

 
 

 

Division of Criminal Investigation 

Monthly Report 

February 2023 

 

 

 

1. Sexual Misconduct: Suspect: DM, W/M, 63yoa; Victim: VP, W/F, 13yoa. 

Unfounded. 

2. Warrant:(Burglary/Criminal Mischief). Suspect: SS, W/F, 29 yoa; Victim: State 

of NE. Reports sent to RCPA. 

3. Warrant: (Failure to appear). Suspect: CL, B/M, 45yoa; Victim: State of MO. 

Reports sent to RCPA. 

4. Warrant: (Probation Violation). Suspect: CL, B/M, 45yoa; Victim: State of MO. 

Reports sent to RCPA. 

5. Missing Person: Missing: JC, W/M, 46yoa; Reporting: AC, W/F, 22yoa. Cleared, 

person found. 

6. Warrant: (Failure to appear). Suspect: CP, W/M, 22yoa; Victim: State of MO. 

Reports sent to RCPA. 

7. Burglary: Suspect: CT, W/M, 47 yoa; Victim: WM.  Reports sent to RCPA. 

8. Possession of Controlled Substance (Meth); Suspect: KB W/F, 28 YOA, Victim: 

State of MO. Reports sent to RCPA. 

9. Possession of Controlled Substance (Fentanyl); Suspect: KB W/F, 28 YOA, 

Victim: State of MO. Reports sent to RCPA. 

10. Keeping or Maintaining Public Nuisance; Suspect: KB W/F, 28 YOA, Victim: 

State of MO. Reports sent to RCPA. 

11. Financial Exploitation of Elderly/Disabled; Suspect: TC W/F, 40 YOA; Victim: 

BH W/F, 88 YOA. Reports sent to RCPA. 

12. Statutory Sodomy; Suspect: JP W/M, 35 YOA; Victim: GH W/F, 15 YOA. 

Unfounded. 

13. Abuse/Neglect of a Child; Suspect: AC W/F, 23 YOA; Victim: AB W/F, 3 YOA. 

Reports sent to RCPA. 

14. Endangering the Welfare of a Child; Suspect: AC W/F, 23 YOA; Victim: AB 

W/F, 3 YOA. Reports sent to RCPA. 

15. Rape-2nd Degree; Suspect: EO W/M, 21 YOA; Victim: AL W/F, 22 YOA. 

Unfounded. 

16. Statutory Sodomy; Suspect: JB W/M, 44 YOA; Victim: EB W/F 16 YOA. 

Unfounded. 

 

141

#13.



 

 

Cases Cleared………………………………………..16 

Interviews……………………………………….……110 

Interrogations………………………………………..5 

Reports Written………………………………………92 

 

 

Special Assignments 

 

Monthly Report  

Tagged several body camera videos. 

Responded to E. Urbandale in reference to a peace disturbance investigation. 

Conducted an interview in reference to a sexual misconduct investigation. 

Conducted a traffic stop investigation on N. Morley 

Assisted DDCC in obtaining information for a stealing investigation. 

Investigated a report of stealing on the west outer road.  

Seized contraband on Shelby Dr. 

Conducted a traffic stop investigation on N. Morley 

Responded to Cedar Lakes in reference to a shooting investigation. 

Conducted a traffic stop investigation on N. Morley. 

Conducted an investigation from a motor vehicle accident on W. Reed. 

Served an arrest warrant out of Furnas County, NE for burglary and criminal mischief  

Conducted an investigation involving theft from a storage unit on Huntsville Road.  

Responded to Myra as part of SWAT to serve a search warrant for individual with active 

Randolph County warrants #22-RAFTA-61 and 22-RAPBR-34 

Conducted a missing person investigation.  

Conducted an investigation involving a burglary 

Provided security for a mix martial arts event at the MACC Activity Center.  

Conducted a traffic stop investigation at E. McKinsey and Clark. 

Conducted an interview in a follow up to a burglary investigation. 

Served Boone County warrant#23-BAFTA-303 for failure to appear. 

Conducted an interview in reference to a fraud investigation.  

Responded to Myra in reference to a verbal peace disturbance.  

Conducted a traffic stop investigation on S. Williams. 

Responded to Thompson in reference to a stealing investigation. 

Conducted a follow up in a fraud investigation.  

Conducted a traffic stop investigation on Sturgeon. 

Conducted a follow up in a fraud investigation. 

Completed Paycom for detective unit. 

Approved numerous reports for Detective Unit. 

Tagged numerous body camera videos. 

Conducted follow up on a Burglary investigation. 

Conducted follow up on a fraud investigation. 

Contacted University Hospital in reference to picking up evidence for a Sexual Assault 

investigation. 

142

#13.



                     City of 
                                                

                                                                                                                               

                                   

 
Police Department                                                                                                300 N Clark Street                 

Troy Link                                                                                                                 Moberly, MO  65270 

Chief of Police                                                                                                         Phone:      660-263-0346 

264th  Session FBI Academy                                                                                   Fax:          660-263-8540 

 
 

 

Assisted with Pursuit Review Board. 

Assisted NOMO Drug Task Force with a search warrant for Fentanyl/ Methamphetamine. 

Contacted Dept of Public Safety for recommendations on Sexual Assault Survivors Bill 

of Rights law. 

Assisted Patrol Division with a Stealing investigation. 

Contacted MSHP and FBI in reference to a Stealing investigation. 

Attended informational meeting at the Randolph County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office. 

Assisted with Domestic Assault investigation. 

Assisted with Financial Exploitation of the Elderly investigation. 

Conducted follow up on Child Abuse investigation. 

Conducted follow up on Death Investigation (Suicide). 

Completed on call schedule for Detective Unit. 

Investigated reported Fraud/ Stealing. 

Submitted request for Investigative Subpoena to the prosecuting attorney. 

Reviewed SAFE kit testing results from the Attorney General’s Office. 

Conducted follow up on Death Investigation (Accidental/Fire). 

Submitted Investigative Subpoena to bank. 

Liquor License Application- Lucky’s. 

Conducted follow up on Fraud investigation. 

Picked up and reviewed documents received from Investigative Subpoena for Fraud 

investigation. 

Meeting with Coroner regarding open Death Investigations. 

Received/reviewed documents from Court Clerk in reference to Fraud investigation. 

Assisted with Child Abuse/ Child Molestation investigation. 

Meeting with FBI in reference to Fraud investigation. 

Collected SAFE exam documentation from University of Missouri Hospital. 

Assisted NOMO Drug Task Force with Search Warrant for drug investigation. 

Corresponded with Rainbow House in reference to scheduling multiple forensic 

interviews. 

Conducted follow-up interviews in reference to Child Molestation investigation.  

Attended forensic interview at the Rainbow House  

Attended roundtable discussion at the Prosecuting Attorney’s Office.  

Wrote Snapchat search warrant in reference to Child Molestation investigation. 

Submitted CAC Referral to Rainbow House in reference to Child Molestation 

investigation. 

Conducted interviews in reference to Child Abuse/Child Molestation investigation. 

Executed Snapchat search warrant in reference to Child Molestation investigation. 

Arrested Suspect for active warrants out of Randolph County. 

143

#13.



Submitted online report to Child Abuse and Neglect Hotline. 

Conducted follow-up interview in reference to Rape investigation. 

Wrote US Cellular search warrant. 

Interviewed victim in reference to Harassment/Possession of Child Pornography 

investigation. 

Interviewed suspect in reference to Fraud investigation.  

Executed US Cellular search warrant.  

Attended Preliminary Hearing for Domestic Assault case.  

Attended forensic interview at the Rainbow House in reference to Child Molestation 

investigation.  

Attend SAFE exam at the Rainbow House. 

Attended forensic interview at the Rainbow House in reference to Statutory Sodomy 

investigation. 

Assisted patrol division with Stealing/Nonconsensual Dissemination of Private Sexual 

Images  

Submitted 2 Snapchat preservation requests in reference to Stealing/Nonconsensual  

Downloaded/Reviewed Snapchat information from search warrant return.  

Submitted emergency CAC Referral in reference to Statutory Sodomy/Child Abuse 

investigation. 

Attended forensic interview at the Rainbow House in reference to Statutory 

Sodomy/Child abuse investigation.  

Collected SAFE exam and documentation from University of Missouri Hospital. 

 

 

 

Recovered Property 

 

Gray Phoenix foldable drone est. value $259.00 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

Tracey Hayes 

Commander  

 

 

144

#13.



145

#13.



146

#13.



147

#13.



148

#13.



149

#13.



150

#13.



151

#13.



152

#13.



153

#13.



154

#13.



155

#13.



156

#13.



157

#13.



158

#13.



159

#13.



160

#13.



161

#13.



162

#13.



163

#13.



164

#13.



165

#13.



166

#13.



167

#13.



168

#13.



169

#13.



170

#13.



171

#13.



172

#13.



173

#13.



174

#13.



175

#13.



176

#13.



177

#13.



178

#13.



179

#13.



180

#13.



181

#13.



182

#13.



183

#13.



184

#13.



Director – Troy Bock 

 Gave annual presentations about the year ahead in Parks and Recreation at the February 

Chamber Chat (sponsored), Optimist Club, and Kiwanis Club. Different combinations of 

MPRD and Heritage Hills staff joined me for these. 

 Invasive species treatment (phase I) was done at Beuth Park and a portion of Rothwell 

Park from Groeber Field SW to the maintenance shop. A second treatment will be done 

late spring to catch anything missed in the first round. Conservation is providing partial 

funding for the project (70%) on a reimbursement basis. 

 Shelter 5 roof/truss replacement. 

 A survey of Fox Park was done to verify and address unclear boundary issues over the 

decades including discrepancies between what GIS showed and a survey from the 1970’s. 

 Attended the quarterly Friends of the Park meeting. They are looking at rebuilding their 

board with some new recruits. Dean Miller was approved and their board will consider 

four additional names at the May meeting. 

 Attended the Tourism meeting organized by the Chamber which will now be monthly 

going forward. While it is a small group, it is a positive effort by the Chamber to enhance 

communication, coordination, and marketing amongst tourism related entities and will 

hopefully build in attendance with other relevant businesses and nonprofits in town. 

 Dirk and I attended the initial kickoff meeting with Bartlett & West related to the 

Kiwanis Park engineering. 

 

Administration – Leslie Keeney  

 Attended and spoke at the February Moberly Chamber Chat to discuss various areas of 

the department.  

 Attended the quarterly Friends of the Park meeting, currently taking minutes for their 

board.  

 Followed up on contracts that have not been signed and returned by contracted 

organizations. 

 Had documents processed for destruction through the City Council Process. 

 Attended the Missouri Parks and Recreation Conference. Obtained good information to 

bring back to the department for future use.  

 Oversaw day to day operations of Parks and Recreation Office. 

 

Park Superintendent – Dirk Miller 

 Completed demo and re-construction of pump house on #9 at Heritage Hills Golf Course. 

Started on second pumphouse at hole #13.  

 Met with Candice Rodman from Missouri Extension and Matt Everts on the proposed 

new Community Garden project, to discuss the ideas and plans to proceed. 

 Tore apart two butterfly valves at Pool, cleaned, ordered faulty parts and replaced them. 

Have two more to do. 

 TMP came out and demolished roof on Shelter #5 and installed new trusses and new roof. 

We removed “old” Lions sign, took to Sherwood Mann to re-work, and then re-install. 

 Received Amphitheater, presently stored at west end of Riley Pavilion. Jeff Lawrence has 

marked where new amphitheater and roadway are going, reviewed with myself and Troy.  

 Ordered replacement door and jamb for Klein Shelter and installed. Also installed deer 

camera to try and see who is being the vandal. 

 Rented stump grinder for two shrubs at Depot and several stumps at the Complex. 

 Currently working to replace light pole near Shelter #5. 

185

#13.



 Preparing for work at Candy Cane City so that new “Non-Climbing” wall/rail system can be 

installed. 

 Worked on concrete estimate for the Complex Softball area by dugout and batting cage, behind 

bleachers, and for sidewalk by playground/concession. Sawed up the same sidewalk for quick 

demo. 

 Pete Agee did maintenance on East Bathroom so it would be equipped for the MACC Baseball 

and MACC Softball programs. 

 Shipped off Rothwell Lake Fountain for repairs. 

 

Athletic Complex Supervisor/Sports Manager – Jacob Bunten 

Athletic Complex: 

 Field supply bids for 2023 were gathered.  

 Bleigh Construction continued working diligently towards MACC baseball/softball 

dugouts and batting cages. 

 Direct Drive belts were installed on east and west bathrooms exhaust fan systems.  

 Received our new John Deere 4x2 Gators.  

Sports: 

 New Registration for all 2023 summer sport leagues continued. Deadline is April 7th to 

register.  

o Current registration numbers as of March 13th, are as follows (number in parentheses is 

last year’s total, up to this point): 

  Rec.                           Comp. 

 8U – 30 (22)               12U – 0 (0) 

 1OU - 49 (19)             14U – 1 (2) 

 12U – 11 (18)             16U – 1 (0) 

                                     18U – 1 (0) 

Recreation Supervisor – Jenna Kitchen 

Events/Marketing 

 Easter Egg Hunt Hop Through the Park runs April 3rd-10th.  

 Received several photos to be entered into the Love Your Parks Photo contest. 

 Tracey and I are working on the Mother Daughter Tea. 2022 Miss Missouri, Clare 

Kuebler, will be making be an appearance at the tea, as it is a princess theme, “Once 

Upon a Time”. 

 Distributed spring flyers to all surrounding schools. The flyer included our spring/early 

summer activities, ball leagues, pool passes, etc. 

Concessions/Aquatics 

 Working with our new Kohls rep to finalize concession items/products. 

 Have another Lifeguard Training March 25th-26th, for our upcoming lifeguards. 

 

 

186

#13.



2023 2022
Thompson Campground 6 Monthly(6) 25

Misc. Thompson Campground - - -

Miscellaneous Park Fees $0.00 - $2,025

Overnight Fishing Passes - - -

Paddleboat Rental - - -

Canoe Storage $50.00 Boat Storage(1) $0.00

Archery Range - - -

Overlook & Plaza - - -

Midway 1
Internal: Block for Ampitheater 

Build (1 res. For 28 days)
1

Equestrian Area/

Rodeo Ground
-

-
-

James Youth Center 2
Fair Board Meeting(1) MDC Fly 

Fishing Class(1)
4

Lodge 6

Baby Shower(3) 4-H Shooting 

Event(1)  Private Rental(1) Birthday 

Party(1)

5

Lion's Beuth Park - - -

Tannehill Park & Gazebo - - -

Depot Park (Entire Park) - - -

Rothwell Park 5K / Complex 5K - - -

2023 2022

Red 1 2

Internal: MACC Softball Team 

Practice & Program(24 days of 

scheduled practices and 1 day block 

for construction purposes)

0

Red 2 - - -

Blue 1 - - -

Blue 2 - - -

Blue 3 - - -

Green 1 - - -

Green 2 - - -

Green 3 - - -

Green 4 2

Internal: MACC Softball Team 

Practice & Program(24 days of 

scheduled practices and 1 day block 

for construction purposes)

0

Green 5 - - -

Green 6 - - -

Groeber - - -

Meinert - - -

Patrick - - -

Fox Field - - -

Monthly Report
February 2023

P
ar

ks
Fi

e
ld

s

187

#13.



Fox Park Pickleball / Tennis Courts - - -

Batting Cages - - -

Shelter 1 Tennis Courts - - -

Wilhite Tennis Courts - - -

2023 2022

Shelter 1 - - -

Shelter 3 - - -

Shelter 5 1
Internal: Block for roof project(1 res. 

For 27 days)
0

Fox Park Shelter - - -

Klein Shelter - - -

Lake Pavilion - - -

Riley Pavilion 1
Internal: Block for Ampitheater 

Build (1 res. For 28 days)
1

Meditation Garden and Legacy Overlook -
-

-

Depot Park Shelter -

2023 2022

A
u

d
it

o
ri

u
m

Entire Facility 2

Redeemer Church members 

meeting(1) Internal: Father 

Daughter Dance(1 res. For 3 days)

4

2023 2022

Entire Facility -

-

-

Sunshade Area -

-

-

2023 2022

400 Father Daughter Dance 400

R
e

cr
e

at
io

n
A

q
u

at
ic

 
Fi

e
ld

s
Sh

e
lt

e
rs

188

#13.



1 
 

 
 
 
 

Director Of Utilities Monthly Report 
February 2023 (Presented At The March 20  City Council Meeting) 

Director’s Summary 

Happy to say we’re moving dirt on the first of six EDA projects. The timeline for the remaining projects is 

pointing towards advertisement for bids during the 2nd  and 3rd quarters of 2023 with bid awards to 

follow receipt of bids, with construction on each to be underway sometime during 2023. The Utilities 

Department continues to spend time on project planning, and activities related to pursuit of easement 

and property data necessary prior to project advertisement for bids, for both EDA and SRF projects. 

Other projects coming up are the replacement of the older jet vac, replacement of a utilities dump truck, 

Stormwater 319 Grant Application development along with the Stormwater Master Plan.  

Caselle Software:  During February 2023 implementation was nearly complete with all bills back on 

schedule with some investigation underway on how to correct some software scheduling issues needed. 

Customers have been very patient, and staff have received encouraging feedback during the process 

from many. 

Project Tracking 

WTP Tracer Study testing about complete and Jacobs is preparing data model for submittal to DNR. 

Sparks Avenue Sewer:  

 Construction permit requested. Plans under review for that permit. 

 Project scheduled for advertisement of bids during 2nd quarter of 2023.  

Northwest Regional Lift Station:  

 Design phase underway. 

 Additional SRF documents remaining to be submitted for project extension. 

 Easements needed for piping routes. Mapping of those easements is scheduled for March 

2023. 

WWTP Digester Liner Replacement:  

 Design and specifications activities underway. Nearing advertisement for bid process. 

Tannehill Apartments Water Line Replacement:  

 Construction completed in February 2022. This will tie into the Rollins Street water line once 

replaced. 

Route JJ: 

 Moberly working to obtain easements. 4/48 outstanding easements remain. 

 Jacobs to prepare application for construction permit. 
 

 

189

#13.



2 
 

EDA Infrastructure Grant Projects:  Project update meetings are held bi-weekly with Jacobs Engineering 

to track progress and make sure items are addressed in a timely manner. Each project has a 180 day 

construction timeline. The stormwater project for the Industrial Park is a Howe Company project. The six 

(6) projects included and the status of each: 

Morley Street Pump Station: 

 Construction permit received. 

 Advertisement for Bids is the next step in the process. 
 

N. Morley Water Main: 

 100% plans and specifications are complete and have been sent to EDA for approval.  

 DNR construction permit has been received. 

 One easement is not executed as of now. 
o City working through the condemnation process. 
o Owner has not responded to a monetary offer for the easement. 

 Ready to bid once final easement secured and EDA documents received. 
 

Sturgeon and Rollins Water Main: 

 Willis Bros selected. To be awarded and Notice to Proceed delivered in February. 

 To coordinate with other EDA projects, bid process is anticipated to be completed in early 2023. 

 This qualifies Moberly as having met the March 28 EDA deadline for all six EDA projects. 
 

Downtown Sewer Rehab: 

 Project to be restructured as one contract for completion of cleaning, inspection and 

rehabilitation to consolidate the effort with one full service contractor, and to better able to 

control total project costs. Final scope and specifications discussions with EDA underway.  

Downtown CSO Storage Facility: 
 

 100% Plan revision necessary due to construction cost inflation. 

 EDA to approve project restructuring justification. 

 Construction permit from DNR expected in the next two months. 

 Bid and/or construction start date to accommodate 2023 September special events.  
 

Industrial Park Stormwater – (Howe Company project.) 

 Advertisement for bids expected following EDA approval of plans & specifications (underway.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

190

#13.



3 
 

Dept. Summaries: 

Drinking Water produced:       35.148 MG (1.134 MG/Day) 

Drinking Water billed:        31.546 MG (1.127 MG/Day)  $212,897  ($7,603/Day) 

Wastewater Treated:        44.603 MG (1.487 MG/Day) 

Wastewater Billed:        20.745 MG (0.741 MG/Day) $292,282 ($10,439/Day) 

Total Water Loss from Leaks and Service work:          3.79 MG 

Wastewater Discharge Combined Sewer Outfalls:     5.31 MG 

Total February precipitation                        0.93 inches 

Monthly Water Production 32,768,557 

Monthly Used by City Facilities 2,512,698 

Accounted for During Water Leaks 1,057,195 

System Flushing 574,373 

Metered & Billed 28,361,475 

YTD Avg Water Loss Monthly Avg 7.8% 

*Flow #s are 12 month running average, Gallons 

Water Office  

 93 Landlord letters. 

 58 Emails to 15 Landlords. 

 136 work orders. 

 Received 20 Waste Management calls from customers. 

Distribution and Collection Department and Customer Service  

 Repaired 7 water leaks. 

 Replaced or removed 4 valves. 

 Poured 0 yards of concrete. 

 Completed 143 Missouri One Call tickets for locating water and sewer lines. 

 Staff investigated 1 sewer calls. 

 10 staff OT hours. 

 Inspected 2,412 feet of sewer line. 

 Jetted approximately 9,918 feet of sewer line. (Almost 2 miles.) 

 Sawed 204 feet of sewer lines to remove roots. 
 

Wastewater Treatment Facility 

 Treated 58.314 MG an average of 2.082 MGD. 

 Transferred 1,634,922 gallons of sludge for the SBRs to the digesters. 

 13.19 DT of biosolids applied for the month. 

 3.07 inches of precipitation that fell over an 8-day period. 

 Taylor CSO (outfall 002) did not discharge for the month of February.  

 Rollins CSO (outfall 003) discharged 5.31 MGD for the month of February.  

 Seven Bridges CSO (outfall 004) did not discharge for the month of February. 

 Holman Rd CSO (outfall 005) did not discharge for the month of February.  

191

#13.



4 
 

 Grease has been noticed at the wastewater plant more frequently. Pro Pumping has been 
removing grease from the wet well at Morley Pumpstation on weekly basis. Floats in the Morley 
PS have not been working properly due to high grease amounts in the wet well. A total of 8,750 
gallons were removed in January. Grease was noticed at the Rollins PS bar screen and the 
WWTP influent pumpstation. The temporary DAF unit has not been in operation due to 
maintenance issues. SWIFT is working to get the unit up and running. The facility has contracted 
Reed Engineering for the project. 

 Cummins technicians visited the various lift stations with generators throughout the month to 
do yearly maintenance. The unit at Seven Bridges requires maintenance beyond the routine 
duties. Parts are on order for this. 

 Cleaning of the UV system has been taking place throughout the month. Parts needed for 
startup were delivered to the WWTP. The system should be ready for disinfection season 
starting April 1.  

 The blower motor that was needing warranty work was picked up from JCI. This will be a spare 
motor in case of a motor failure in the future.  

 It was discovered the decant hose has become unattached in SHB 1. The line is 8’ below the 
surface of the basin. When land application is being done routinely in the dryer months, staff 
will work to drain the basin enough to reinstall the line.  

 Vandevanter Engineering installed a new control system at the Northeast Pumpstation. This 
system matches controlling systems that are or will be installed in several stations currently.  

 Influent Pump 1 was pulled from the station at the WWTP. A large “rubber ball” was pulled from 
the impeller. That pump was sent to Vandevanter Engineering for inspection and potential 
repairs.  

 Quarterly samples were collected at Heritage Hills Golf Course lagoon per DNR permit 
requirements.  
 

Water Plant 

 WTP staff completed 3,173 lab analyses. 

 Analyzed 5 Colilert samples for total coliform.  

 Called out for low towers on Rollins and Wicker. We had to open the gate at Rollins for D&C.  

 Completed the monthly disinfection report.  

 Picked up RO water from the dialysis center. 

 Sparks Ave booster station tested.  

 Hach performed quarterly calibration and maintenance on filter turbidimeters. 

 Performed monthly maintenance on the CL-17 free chlorine analyzer. 

 Performed monthly maintenance on CL-17 total chlorine analyzer.  

 Received call in the middle of the night about lake generator running. All homes in that area 
have power. Contacted Ameren and they sent a crew out to make repairs to the line on the 
pole. Back online power around 1215.  

 Performed maintenance on the potassium permanganate feed system.  

 Changed chlorine container.  

 Pulled electric bills for the plant to put together numbers for trial study. 

 Spoke with Brenntag about chemical sales and Hawkins about trial study numbers.  

 Picked up supplies at Harbor Freight and Westlakes to start maintenance on the carbon feed 
system. During repairs we found a small split in the rubber seal above the hopper. That split is 
allowing carbon spill when the vibrator shakes. When we started messing with it, it got worse, 
to the point carbon was flowing out like water. We were able to plug and seal it up temporary.  

 Verified that Hawkins is supposed to be sending us a reimbursement check for fluoride carboy 
deposits.  

192

#13.



5 
 

 Sam took his ‘D’ level certification exam.  

 Collected Bac-T and TOC samples. 

 Met with Tom Sanders and Steve Wilson about community garden plans.  

 Completed and turned in the Tier 2 report.  

 Attended the MWWC State Board Meeting.  

 Received SOC cooler.  

 Collected Bac-T and SOC samples and shipped off.  

 Collected Bac-T samples.  

 Worked on fluoride grant paperwork.  

 Completed the annual paperwork with the Dialysis center. 

 Cummins Mid-South onsite for semi-annual maintenance on the plant and lake generators.  

 Carbon silo plugged up and overfed carbon out the top of the bowl. Was able to clear the 
blockage and get it feeding after 2 hours of work.  
 

Water Quality Coordinator 

 Finished & submitted Annual DNR Report. 

 Completed all land disturbance inspections EXCEPT the 3 Bros site & Pretz Site in Cobblestone 

Creek (see chart). 

 Cleaned and organized Household Hazardous Waste Facility. 

 Worked on 2024 budget. 

 Worked with Shirley Olney to publicize closure of HHW facility and upcoming June cleanup. 

 Worked on article about cleanup. 

 Detailed truck for potential future trade-in. 

 Met with Barr to discuss 319 grant and ARPA projects. 

 Rescheduled CSM exam until after maternity leave. 

 Discussed HHW maintenance and operation with Taney County facility manager. 

 Received 68.69 lbs material into HHW Facility (Emily Lute managed the facility on Open Day 

2/11/23). 

 Sent 142.25 lbs material out for re-use from HHW Facility (Emily Lute managed the facility on 

Open Day 2/11/23). 

 Stabilized and disposed of 355.3 lbs non-reusable material from HHW Facility (Emily Lute 

managed the facility on Open Day 2/11/23). 

 Sent Fire Chief updated map of facility and inventory of types of chemicals inside. 

 Publicized date of upcoming June community cleanup among community organizations. 

 Reviewed upcoming construction plans for stormwater impacts. 

 

Site Land Disturbance Manager Inspection Results 

Southridge 3 Bros Tony Stuart Self-Inspections not up to date 

Southridge Mutter Don Mutter No issues 

Ellis Place Tony Stuart No issues 

Lantern Pointe Larry Schnell 
Sediment inside sock on far east drain near 

dumpster 

Mid-Am Storage Derek James Litter in drainage ditch 

Eagle Tree Ridge Dave Richardson No issues 

ECLC Lisa Johnson Damaged Sediment Sock 

Alt-Ed site Jeff McKraken No issues 

 

193

#13.



Month Facebook Instagram Twitter

Jan - 2023

Total

31,167 2,222 325 33,714 people

March Report
2023

Social Media stats

Top Posts this month

chamber cash 
mob Video
76 likes

Egg my yard fundraiser share
Reached 7,324 people

instagram
Facebook

Total reach on social media this month

48,957 4,560Feb - 2023 1,020 54,538 people
24,448 1,801As of March 13 275 26,524 people

194

#13.



print

Total: $12,777.05 $23,184.15

Date Ad Ran

Feb 7 - March 7

Reach

$500.00

Amount Spent

Facebook/Instagram

Medium

24,712

2

paid Media stats/Missouri Division of Tourism

Half of this ad spend is reimbursed by the state

Media

Digital

Radio

2019 2020

$10,644.12 $8,530.54

SEM

$800.00 $1,200.00

$4,998.00

Billboard $2,000.000

$1,332.93 $3,465.62

Show me
strong digital $2,989.99

0

0

2021 2022

$2,100.00

$3309.03

$8,449.00

0

TV $7,224.00

$12,958.09

$6,623.69

$3,600.00

$17,237.69

$7,014.00

2023

Sports tournament ad

$750.00

$1,250.00

$500.00

yearly events ads and conference
ads are still in progress

195

#13.



3

Owned communication assets

Put bags together with tourism information from
requests
Approved events to be added to the community
calendar & encouraged partners to send upcoming
events
Submitted events to KWIX/KRES community calendar
& visitmo.com community calendar
Updated tourism website to reflect changes/additions
Worked on social media marketing plan for the month
Researched Google & YouTube Ads
Took pictures at Westside Inn Bar & Grill

Megan talked to organizer of potential new tourism event
Attended Tourism Commission, CID Board meeting, 4th
Street Theatre Board Meeting & Moberly Area Council on
the Arts Board Meeting
Planned Tourism Tuesday, sent out email blast
Presented to Excel twice, once about Chamber 101 & the
other about Chamber volunteer opportunities
Sent emails leads to group tour operators about bus groups
coming to Moberly
Went Live on KWIX/KRES to promote upcoming
events/Gus Macker
Submitted Q2 Reimbursement for the Missouri Division
of Tourism (MDT)

Additional items

planned activites

Had Gus Macker & Junk Junktion
meetings
Working with MU Marketing
students on a new Halloween event
Sent out Christmas Festival food
vendor application to food trucks

196

#13.



Item # Description Jan

102.000.521:
Advertising

Total:

102.000.541:
Administrative

fees

102.000.540:
Contract labor

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

Feb

$1517

$5,000

$583

$7,100

march

4

 monthly billing

tourism Event recap

February 11 - MACC Baseball's inaugural season began
February 18 - Dion Pride Dinner & a Show | Cairo
February 18 - I've Been Everywhere Man Cabaret | 4th Street Theatre
February 24 - MACC Softball's inaugural season began
February 25 - Osuwa Taiko Japanese Drumming | 4th Street Theatre
March 3 & 4 - High school Sectionals | MACC Activity Center
March 4 - HLR Spring Motocross Series | Huntsville
March 5 - Miss Missouri Outstanding Teen Workshop | MACC
March 11 - Missouri USA Regional Wresting Tournament | MACC
March 18 - HLR Spring Motocross Series | Huntsville
March 18 - Rivertown Sound Quartet

197

#13.



Moberly Area Economic Development Corporation 
Board Report: February 17 – March 16, 2023 

Randy Asbury, President, & Kaylee Paffrath, Director of Business Development 

 

Goals/Activities for the Past Month 

 (Ongoing) Continue to assist as applicable the Project Glasgow principals and the City of 
Glasgow on the bridge replacement project, right-of-way issues, and future business options.  

 (Ongoing) Continue discussions with the City of Moberly and a hotel services development 
group regarding downtown Moberly hotel opportunities and development services. 

 (Ongoing) Continue discussions with Fayette developer regarding potential commercial use of 
his vacant land along Church Street for a national flag retail store.  

 (Ongoing) Work with Retail Strategies on potential Howard County sites for a national flag retail 
store. 

 (Ongoing) Work with MACC on customized leadership and culture training with the plan to offer 
the training in Howard & Randolph counties prior to June 30, 2023. 

 (Ongoing) Upon the onboarding of the new MAEDC director of business development, begin 
work on a new marketing plan for all MAEDC efforts. 

 (Ongoing) Continue grant discussions with the City of Moberly regarding site improvements at 
the Moberly Area Industrial Park. 

 (Ongoing) Continue facilitating and hosting various major employers for the KWIXLand in the 
Morning monthly interviews. 

 (Ongoing) Continue collaboration with Dan Hanneken, In2Action, to potentially connect their 
client population with various local manufacturer’s employment needs. 

 (Ongoing) Continue discussions regarding Project Big Wash in Moberly.  
 (Complete) Provide an economic development presentation to the Howard Electric Cooperative 

staff on February 20 and to the Randolph County Republican Women’s Committee the evening 
of March 7. 

 (Complete) Prepare for a March 7 visit and tour with the Missouri Partnership (MP) CEO, the 
Hawthorne Foundation executive director, and multiple MP staff who will also participate. 

 (Complete) Attend the Tri-State Development Summit via Zoom where The Economic and 
Workforce Strategies Task Force will evaluate and assist in implementing strategies for growth in 
all areas of economic development including job creation, workforce development, innovation, 
and entrepreneurship. 

 (Complete) Kaylee to attend the remaining EXCEL classes and graduate from the program on 
March 21. 

 Several PPI applications were received or processed on behalf of the Moberly Depot District CID. 
 Met with Cana Conrow, Judy Thompson, Nicle Atkins, and Brandy Asbury to discuss creating a 

“Business Resource Guide” to be housed at City Hall in Fayette. MAEDC provided the “Starting a 
Business” checklist and guidance on moving their ideas forward. The Fayette Chamber plans to 
proceed with developing their own Chamber Business Guide with contact information of 
participating businesses. 

198

#13.



 Compiled the “Site Selector” packet to use for the MO Partnership visit and future potential site 
selectors. Uploaded a version of the packet to the MAEDC website under ‘Site Selector 
Tools>Why Moberly?’: https://www.moberly-edc.com/why-moberly-area  

 Improved the MAEDC website footer so that it includes important and helpful links and worked 
to improve mobile functionality. 

 Developed Facebook ads to promote the VPCulture workshop.  
 Developed promotional materials for the upcoming strategic planning public forums. 
 3/3/203 Attended Coffee Chat with the Moberly Area Chamber of Commerce. Provided 

information on the upcoming VP Culture training. 
 Attended the Moberly Area Chamber of Commerce Tourism Committee meeting on 3/14/23. 

There was great discussion on improving tourism in Moberly as well as the need for additional 
lodging.  

 Met with David Steffes, he introduced Northwestern Mutual and covered the benefits his 
company may provide for business owners.  

 Met with Dr. Scott Taylor of Stephen’s college. Discussed upcoming workforce development 
efforts and micro credentialing. 
 

Goals for the Next Month 
 

 Continue to assist as applicable the Project Glasgow principals and the City of Glasgow on the 
bridge replacement project, right-of-way issues, and future business options.  

 Continue discussions with the City of Moberly and a hotel services development group regarding 
downtown Moberly hotel opportunities and development services. 

 Continue discussions with Fayette developer regarding potential commercial use of his vacant 
land along Church Street for a national flag retail store.  

 Continue work with Retail Strategies on potential Howard County sites for a national flag retail 
store. 

 Market and promote the VP Culture training on leadership and culture throughout the area. 
 Upon the onboarding of the new MAEDC director of business development, begin work on a 

new marketing plan for all MAEDC efforts. Kaylee will continue on social media and website 
engagement efforts.  

February 2023   
Facebook Page 
Followers 

2,006 +5 

Facebook Page Reach 5,250 +203.8% 
LinkedIn Followers 299 +7 
SEO/Website Views 309 N/A 

 
 Continue grant discussions with the City of Moberly regarding site improvements at the Moberly 

Area Industrial Park. 
 Continue facilitating and hosting various major employers for the KWIXLand in the Morning 

monthly interviews. 

199

#13.



 Continue collaboration with Dan Hanneken, In2Action, to potentially connect their client 
population with various local manufacturer’s employment needs. 

 Continue discussions regarding Project Big Wash in Moberly.  
 Work with Project Sommelier regarding its potential to occur in Randolph County. 
 Attend the Missouri Northeast meeting in Macon on March 24. 
 Speak at the Randolph County Pachyderm Club on March 28. 

Project Overviews 

Project Robot –Project Robot’s taxing district hearing occurred without comment. The Moberly City 
Council approved local incentives for the project. At a future date to be determined by 
EquipmentShare.com, MAEDC will work alongside EquipmentShare.com and the City of Moberly for a 
public announcement. 

Strategic Planning Initiative – As of this writing, 46 individual interviews, three focus groups including 21 
individuals, and five public forums have been scheduled.  
 
Project Sommelier – Our office has been approached again regarding this project. A meeting is 
scheduled for Monday, March 20 between our office, DED, and the principal to discuss the project as it 
relates to potential state incentives.  
 
Project Picard – Our office submitted and RFI to the Missouri Partnership for this project that would 
potentially fill Bulk Industrial’s vacant “Brown” building on Hwy DD. 
 

Other Substantive News & Efforts 

Kaylee and Randy met with Brad Boyer for the third KWIXLand in the Morning interview on March 15. 
The April interview will be with J.B. Waggoner, Inovatia Laboratories, Fayette. 

KOMU aired a great segment regarding Kaylee’s joining MAEDC. They also interviewed Ray Stewart, 
Everlast, and David Patton, Pepco. We heard several positive comments regarding the entire segment.  

Kaylee attended the “SBDC Roadshow” on February 15th in Fayette in coordination with the Small 
Business Development Center (Mizzou). Kaylee met with several Howard County individuals during the 
meeting to discuss efforts related to entrepreneur support. 

Our office attended a Townhall Meeting regarding workforce issues hosted by Moberly Area Community 
College on behalf of Representative Louis Riggs. 

Kaylee and Randy toured the Bulk Industrial building on Hwy DD with Todd Mendon. At this time, the 
building is vacant and listed for sale or lease. The building had recently been cleaned, repainted, and 
repaired in various locations. It is ready for a buyer or tenant. 

The Howard Electric Cooperative hosted Randy for an economic development update at their annual 
staff meeting. 

Brian Crane and the MAEDC office hosted Missouri Partnership staff and the Hawthorn Foundation 
executive director for an office discussion regarding Howard and Randolph counties plus a tour of the 
Moberly Area Industrial Park. 

200

#13.



Kaylee created a site consultant marketing packet that includes information for both Howard and 
Randolph counties. This packet has also been posted to our website in a page turning format. In 
addition, she created a color brochure that incorporated Howard and Randolph County demographic 
information is an easy-to-read format. 

Our office met with Glasgow City Administrator Andrew Frazier to discuss and tour multiple properties 
which could potentially offer options for future economic development opportunities. 

Randy provided the Randolph County Republican Women’s group an update on economic development 
in the area. 

Our office met with Dr. Scott Taylor, Stephens College, to discuss their current educational model and 
how it would fit with workforce needs in the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

201

#13.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk  

Date: March 20, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Consideration For Approval Of A New Liquor Application. 

  

Summary:  Lucky’s:  1401 S Morley St, Moberly, MO 65270, submitted by Brendan 

Fugate.   

 

 

Lucky’s is under new ownership and the new owner, Rucker Fugate, LLC 

(Brendan Fugate) has applied for a liquor license. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Recommended 

Action: Please approve this application. 

  

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Role Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
      Correspondence   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Brubaker     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
  Consultant Report x  Other  Liquor License Apps      Passed Failed 

202

#14.


	Top
	#1.	Approval Of Minutes.
	2023-03-06 Council Meeting-DRAFT

	#2.	Communication From The Downtown Community Improvement District Of The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Proposed Budget.
	moberly downtown cid
	Letter to City transmitting 2023-2024 Prop. Budget  
	CID Budget

	#3.	Communication From The Moberly Crossing Community Improvement District Of The Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Proposed Budget.
	moberly crossing
	Letter to City transmitting 2023-2024 Prop. Budget
	Moberly Crossing CID Proposed Budget 2023-2024 draft

	#4.	An Ordinance Amending Section 46-82 Of The Moberly City Code Relating To Manufactured Home Parks Residential Districts.
	Ordinance Tiny Homes Summary Sheet
	ordinance amending Sec. 46-82
	Tiny Homes-MP
	MP Residential District App

	#5.	A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With Frank And Sherry Cross For Property Located At The Omar N. Bradley Airport And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease.
	Cross Lease Resolution Summary Sheet
	Cross Lease Resolution 2021
	Frank Cross
	Bill of Sale

	#6.	A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Preventative Maintenance Pump/Control Panel Scheduled Maintenance Contract With Vandevanter Engineering/Cogent Company.
	3-20-23 WWTP Pumping System Maintenance Service Summary Sheet
	Vandevanter Resolution #3
	2023-2027 Moberly Maintenance Contract

	#7.	A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into Amendment Number 1 To Task Order Number 19 With Bartlett & West, Inc. Supplementing A Master Agreement Dated March 3, 2020, To Provide Engineering Services For The Kiwanis Park Shelter House And Restroom Building.
	KiwanisEngineeringAmendmentSummaryReg
	B&W Task Orders #19 Amendment resolution
	BW MSA PSA Moberly TO 19 AMENDMENT 1_19245.038 Kiwanis Park
	BW MSA PSA Moberly TO 19_ 21275.000 Kiwanis Park executed

	#8.	A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager  To Purchase An International Dump Truck For Public Utilities
	3-20-23 Rush Truck Center Dump summary
	Single Axle Truck Resolution
	Rush Truck MV607 SBA signed MOB 3-9-23
	Rush Truck Center Proposal In Stock 3-6-23

	#9.	A Resolution Accepting A Permanent Sewer Line Easement From Superior Watercraft Inc.
	3-20-23 1350 E. Hway 24 East easement acceptance summary
	Superior Easement Resolution
	Gill Easement

	#10.	A Resolution Accepting A Fluoridation Grant From The Missouri Department Of Health And Senior Services
	DHSS Fluoridation Grant Summary work 2-20-23
	Fluoridation Grant Reso
	DELIVERABLES AND OUTCOMES DHSS Agreement draft
	Email explanation from DHSS
	ADA Fluoride Fact Sheet 2018

	#11.	A Resolution Accepting The Bid Of Lute Custom Fencing, LLC., And Authorizing Contracting For CSO Basin Replacement Fence Systems.
	3-20-23 Taylor & Rollins CSO Fencing Summary Sheet
	Lute Fencing Resolution
	Lute Fencing contract
	WWTP Fence Bids

	#12.	A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri.
	Appropriation Resolution, March 20, 2023 Agenda Summary
	03-20-2023 Appropriation Resolution

	#13.	Department Head Monthly Reports.
	department head reports
	Comm Dev-Pub Works Monthly Report Feb
	Finance Department February report
	PD monthly report Feb 2023
	Police Dept February 2023
	February 2023 - Monthly Fire Report to City Council (Final)
	P&R February Staff Report 2023
	Parks and Rec February 2023 Monthly Report
	February-2023 Utilities Director Monthly Report 3-20-23
	Chamber of Commerce March Report - 2023
	Board Report_February 17 - March 16, 2023

	#14.	Consideration For Approval Of A New Liquor Application.
	Liquor Application, Agenda Summary, 2023-03-20

	#15.	Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The Status of Litigation and Negotiated Contract.  (Closed Statute 610.021) (1,12)
	Bottom

